
414D ti
m co
d 0

v

0
N

Vi

3 a

m

0
o

X 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 O 0m 9 0 0 0 0 o 9999 0 0 0 o 0 0 0 0 0 0 o O o 0 0a

c

00
E
Q

0 0 1D L o 0

00 m 0 0 0

v 00 1n

co
0 0
0 0

O C f
1 0 M 0 0 N r Q0 O O O O

Cl M 0 N O O

0

0 0LO 10001
an Cl M 1D O

Lri CV 4 N M
t0 0 M N r M t0 N

m co
z

m v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v a V v v0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0N N N N N N N N N N N N 0 0 0 0 0 0 O O O
8 N NN N N

N N N O O O p
h M

0 f
Q

O Cr M N O CO n N N

O
0

O N O N N 0 00 0 0 0 0 0 CO 0
0

0 tD
0 CO

0 0
cf CO N InC 0 0 0 0 0 0 O 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 O co

W O cn LL

g 0 z
N

Z C W Z N f4

W
I m co

co
y W

Z
W W

0

d W U
o a

W 2 W g 0 0
g w

z w a s

ce
0

0 0 0 0 0 W u v v w
w w

c m w wz a

F Q

Z

F F F
Z Q

W n Q U N Q O
m F 1

v m
U F o Z p O z r U 0 N Z Z

o z 0 a 0 a 5 p J m F Q Z a m N co
2 N Q N d a d a O

m Z N
z N 2 O Co 2 J J

O CO U 2 U
O

O w F a 2 2 w Z 3 Z Z
a m m h w

w

w w O s D U CO
W

z r w U v w 0 O O
v O w W

0
2 g f7 Z J F

0
W

a m CL O z
w Q

CO X CL

n o Q Z Z 2 Q O Z
r

w CO

0

a

i
1 0

O

Z a p 0 0
Q m

M m a 0 m 3 Z 2 N Q H a W J U 0 2 as 0
C N
m m
E to

coa r

cc z
8 o0 0o
C a N V O

V v a 3 N
W

1n

M C 00
0 0 0 O N 0 1 co 0 0 V

CO CO 0 0 10 r r m v 0
Cs CV

1 O 00 1f 71 4
N N
CD CO

z m
Z Z z w

0
co ZU U U 0 Z

W

m N CO 0 0

E 0
QS 0

Z 0e 0e o0
z w CO Z CO W

z z z 2 W a w Z
m x g z 0 m LT W

LL LL LL W W J
O p q Z 0 Y p 1 C40 0 0 w p

ILL

220 W p Q J 2 0
Q z Z

J d V Q 2

W gz W yz W O o a
U c7

w Qm z

J J J Z W W F Y LL Q F Z Q F n J R
J J J 0 d V 2 2 z U co

233 a cwioumiui 0
N vi

0 0 0 1D 0 M w

C N 1A 1O 1 CO CO CD OM n CO 0 M N t M N N Of 0
O c

CO CO CO 0 CO O V V CO CO 0 W N N
CO CO

CO 0 W 0 COn c j L d

m m
0

c W W W LL 0 co

P m a J 2 2CO CO
U

W
2 2

0 id 3 c d O O
m

z
p D U U

X m 1n

R o gg a ri v0
u V p C 0 J J J J 1 O Q Q 0 W W W W W w J S O OO

o a E z z z Z z 1 1 z z z Z z z
0

a s
0U 4 0 0 0 0 0 j j z i z Z z z L cc ccU U U U U 0 d LL LL it LL LL LL

w

it



N
CO Oa

V

0
N

3 0

m

m
0

V 00 0

999999
0

0 0000000
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 O 0 09 00 O 0 09 O 0 00 00 0

9999
0 0RI

00
E
Q

O V 0000 t0 0 0 0E O O O O O O
COn N

W N O N 0 O t 0 V n 0 N
Q O 6 N 1A O N O 0 D1 0

h I 0 V D h CO CO Q1 0 t
0000

C C07 0 N el 4 r O O N N O N 0 N t to
LO P N R g t0 O V 6466

NV V CO co V 10 V CCD CO
N t N 0 CO 0 O

m 01
c a Oz

m v v v v v v v Sr v a v v c V sr sr a v V v a Sr V V v v v vCO
O O O o 0 00

N N N N 0 N
0

N N N N N 000000000000 O O O O
N N N N N N

Q
N N N N

N
t0 0 10 10 N O W 0 0 0 01 V CD

N N N
N N N N N N N N N N 0 CM 0 t PI C 0 O 0 N

0
O

V f O
f t0 V u N u 14 0 V i0 N

N N O O N000000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 000000000000
tO 0 0 0 0

0000

I 0 0

w
0 2

0
J

Z Q M z 0
U w sz Q 0 0 co g N

c to M
0

Z I
Ill w LL

O
60J m

o o o O
Q

O
o J Z z z

oz

9
3 N 0 m t t N U JO
W W O

c OW Wzm
a W LL w U QQ

z Q a
w

o W tm m m o a
y o

g
co

o

V m 7 Z Z
W

W Z Z
0

W N Q o F c i z
N Wfr

N U U Z U he O 2 W O Q m v w w W N
a o a

re a

8 tO

O 5
d

O 0 co WCC U c9
Q

O c9 Q
CO W o LC

J
c9

0

Z y
rt S

z m O m U O O O 0 i O z o w z z z g
N C U V m 1 2sN fgTJ p j a fn i O I W I i Q w Z

0 N

jrj
00 U Z Z cc d Q Q Q Q a 1

m o
O W

Z 0 I Ce

a 7 Q K a J 0 IV
C fll
ta m
E m
0

Q o a
o E

mce z

m 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 CO 1 c MU O O O O O N 0 0 0 ON N n n N 0
C1

o f f l P C 10 N M o M 0 0 0
G

0 O N t
V

ik 8 0 0 tO O
tO av v a v v a v V V v V N Z7 V v V V v st t W 0 V N NCO VN 0 0

N N N N N N N N Y V 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 M n p m o ONWN u v N N M o 0 0 0 o CO n v o CO CO m 0 v 0
N

N
0

NPs
CD 0 0 N

Z
0 J R

Z U
ill Z 0o

E

z 7 w

45U
Z

v W O a w a U U
z 2 W 6 0 Z Z

m J J U
Z

U Z U Z N N

0000 0000 0 O 0000 Q co 0
zz UO Q O to

U a re ct re w co Q cn cn z
U f0000

z gwcnw Uw w w uJ w o W W W W
W0

g
o o o o o o w m o to o o

C

w 0 U a Z Z
0 0 0

H r O O F F F F 2 W w
W W W W W W N g to

w z

g 5
W

N N

Z U 00
0 z 222222 0 0 w

LL

x 0 0 0
0 Q U U U U U U U W N Q W I 2 2

Cail
0 t t 0 t t

V V V V V N V V V V t0 0 z N CO CO
V V N 40 00 CO

N M 07 N

0 0 F
z U 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
W J

Z z Z Z z Z Z

QN 0000000
a

C
W 0000000 0 0 0 0

Z W W W W W W W

d ce
0 0 0 0 0 0

Z z z Z Z Z z Z d

X
0

LL gqqqqq Q 0000000 Z WWWWf F F F F F F J J J J J J J J J J J J Z Z Z Z
LL

C o N O N V 0

re

m O Q Q Q Q Q W Q Q Q Q Q Q Q Q Q Q Q Q t9 U U Um a a a a
U
a a a

U
a a a a a o Z Z Z ZZ K K re re re re U U U U U U U U U U

0 E z Z z Z Z
W W W W0000000 z z Z Z z z z Z Z Z z Z

DMDDDDDDDDDDU
co

Z Z Z Z Z Z Z
222222222222 U U U U



M

Q

6 N
m m
a O

a

NN
ai

C ma
m

m
0

v 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 000000000000000000m
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0a

E
00

EQ

E O N O a N CO
O M a h fD O tO O N O CO N N CO CO CO CO O CC co N Of O a COa N CO O O M O O co a O a N N O CO O O a N a co O OfO n O a a h N a 0 O Ni O a M V Ni Of

N N N
csi O

N OOf CO
O co I aco

N N N C N N n
M O O 7 N 0 r N M M M N0 N N co O CG

z

m a a a a a a a It It a a a a a a V a a a v a a v a a a It a a a a
CO0

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 O E E 0 E 0 0 0 000000000000000N N CO N N N N N

N

N N N CO CO N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N
N N O CO CO

O f a
N N N N M O O D mo

0 O
M O1 M M O M N

0 0 0 a coO co O N O O O O N O O G
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

III COt IO N CO CO to l0
0
41

0
0 N t0 f0 CO f0 WI CO CO CD O CD 0 0 CD CO CD0 0000000 0 0 0 000000000000000000

U 0 0

JQ J

H O
w y QJQ

co Z O O
O

z d H
co

0 z W M

7

C7
7 H

CO
o O O N

W
LL

U 7 w 0
CO 0

n w H Q z 7 co 0 Y O 0 Z 7 CO 0
r F H O O i O 00U z a Q H U

m W CO Z H N U Z 7 H 1 CO C 0 z W
iit

E
0

W R Z 0 m W d 0 Q U
Z

CO

a Q O
Z

03
r N O w 2 H E Q cOO

a
m J m W 0 1 Oz z F z 0

a Q U z H U a j w w x x 3 F z y Q M O J Ed U

ix H2o 0I Zc7
ti m O W JWUiEJoa

z N Q O
U W Z d U U x x co

J
J CO H H m d CO

Q w Q co
Oui

Q N Q N U1 0 D CO
W d 2 cc J J J UCU ujm W

ILI IS z J w
Q 7 Q 1 2 LLu a

O
0 o U 5 x z U

1 m J
z W

Q Q Q O O F a O w m
H v to Q J z m0 U mmmaxmv0vmC00000mwQ m

C N
m m

E 0

a ar

a E
m a

2 z

U N 0

0
co

in W N M z Z z Z
c

C n co of of I m Z
O cc0 W 0 0 0 0 O

N
O a 4 N co 0 M

M O N CD Of sr N m a III M P7 f07 paN
p N N N N N IO to N N N N N O M ID a

0 0 CO c0
0jD N N f0 N CO V

M O M M co M co N co C9 M M chM M M M M Y Y E E E O to n n n n

uz
0
F

U V U 0 co co co Fm FZ Z z 0 Z
m QrerererereQ Q Q QE Q g J z z z z z a aaa a
z Z2

z

z U co co co co co 0 0 0 O 0O O Z WWWWW I H H H H

g 7 7 7 7 7
7YQ

U J J Q
Sm COW

J
A A W W W W W W W y y y y Q Q Q Q Q

Z w O W W Q Y W CL d M CG a d W 7 7 7 7 7 d a d d y
y W 1 g a a n Q Q w

00000
z z z z z

r N O 7 Q d F
2 d C O R d d m J J J V 00000

J W
M co co W 7

a
W W O O Q Q Q Q Q Q W W W W W

Z Z Z Z 2
w J J J J JJ

H
O Z

Z to m U U
1111 x x z Z Z Z Z H

O j J p N
U

a s WZLIJ
2 co 7 2 F f ci 0 0 0 H F Q Q Q Q Q Q Q m m CO m m2 CO h CO U co
CO co co O N

N C O M Y a
a a a a a a a fn of of of O co co co co CO ao

ODN M 0 M t0 CO t0
CO CO CO CO OD 0 N N CO N NC

11 r Of O O W N a N h n
a N n n n nm

6
d Z

w
H w

Z

Z Z N0W

w 00C7 ii 1
R 2 2 te 2 m Q J w 0 Q d R K Q d d m Q m R a Qd W W W W W W W Z Z 5 re w w W w W W W W W W w W W w W W w w

X W W W W W W W W U 0 0 H a d a d d d d d 0 d d d d d d d d G
ZZZZZZZ N N

CO

m 0 O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O0

0 0 c7 0 0 m
c m 10 CO CO x x x x x CC x x x x x x x x m x x x

LL m z Z z Z z Z Z O Z Z D H t11 H f O
0 d

0

d d d d O

O

d

0 Q 0

d 0

O Q

a
0 E ywy

w

W
W

W W w
F

0 a
H W w W H U U U U U U U U U U U U U U U U U U

a F H 1 F H cc cc re 1010101000000000000000
J J

Cr CO
U U U U U U U m m CO CO CO CO a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a



v 2
a

m in

CO m
a 0

v

0
N

c do
m

m
0

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 000000000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Di
o 0000000000000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

o

c

00
E
a

m m m 0 0 n m m 0 0 0 0 O 0 V W m N 0 0 v 0 m o n o 0 0 0 0 m
E O 0 CO m 0 n m co O v 0 0 0 0 M 0 m M O m m m N 0 CO 0 n N 0 CO 0 0 v

a m CV co t Ui o La Oi to n v C7 La Oi C1i ui N ui Oi CM ui m u at CV C1i m CG CO
st n sr U v n 0 CO CO M a N a N M M CO u CO CO ir m 0 O CO 0 Mc 1 0 CO N N V

Nr
m
Z

m v v v v v a V v v v v v v v v v v v v v V v v v v v v v v

0
0000000000000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
N N CNI N N IN N N N N N OI N N N N N N N N N N OI N N N N N N N

8 in n m o
0

m
C

co o o v o 0 0 o c v o v CO 0 n M 0
N N N M M O N N O N N N N N N N N N N N N N 1 O

0 10 0 1 U N CO N U CO N u u N N u u 11 U U U N 10 U 10 U V1 10 N u 10
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

J
W Z

O LLI 0 LO

co La Z 2 re
LL Z

Ce a m
O 0 F

CO
LL W

W O
n

a g
A1

m p J O1
0

C
C

co W C o a CO W N
co 0 w O do el

C I

LL
Z co co 0

W co
O w O

H

a W w 0 p w U O a S m w 0 CO m Ce
v 0 Zz Cn 1

LL
O 0 LL LL to W

N
p

p
W H

coJ Z Y p J
CO

J LL W Z Z U Z
m CO w p U g w

W R ce Y re Si cc
LL g p w W

Z 9
V W za z

LL m w O O Y 0 S O S m N

amvl7wapo O 1t 0 m m

o W H Z U Z p co a 0
CO CO CO

0 0 cc J W a W J z F J l LL g F
O
2 c4

o a 2 x x Q 0 v W Z ce X LL 1
n v F v co c0 co

z w 1 I v 0 0

a m
C iii
m m

E m
m v
a

o z m
U V O O Z Z 1N

O
N 1aDk

C
co
O O 0 0 COO 1N u1 1lN m W U n

Ill G 0 If N 0 W 0 0 0 R f0co O N m n 0 N m OD 0 Cr m M N N N E 0 N

M M M M M M O 1 N m ONO CO
0 C Cr

O C C09 0 N 0 CD
1 N N O N

M M M M M M CO n e M M Cr M M M 0 0 v 0 0 0 0 0 0

U U U
Z Z Z

0

F F F Z
X W W W CO

a m U U U 0 U U 0

E N OO 0 0 0 U Z Z 0

H U U U I C1 p0 U
z J 111 111

o a U
O X X X Z W LL K 2 O E

c w w w w w w
a O w w w w w w X m m y y U LU y

m Ce S S Ct EY S us O
Q
0 0

Q
0 0 a D o D p Z 7 7 o CO 7

a a Q a a a p Q a
W W 3 3 3 3 0 g V3 3 3 3 3 3 z

p o p o p p U Z Q 1L 2 p 0 0 0 0 p Z w J J H N

a a a a a a so U p v r r a a a a a a 0 JQ
a w w

z 0 U

US S S S M 111 a
W

U z z J 111111 J Y Z Z F a W 0 0
W W w W w w Z U 2 W a a a W W W W W W J Q 7 Z Z O z 2 k a aU
Q Q Q U a 7U 0 0 a Q a a a a U N CO d

00w00

OLa v v f v v m N m CA n n n V V v v m N m
Z

N N M N CO O CO CO
M N N N N m n m p CO CO 0 N 1 V v

0 CO CO 0 0 m 0 J m n n

m

La
z z z z z z z z z

Z 0 0 o o o o a 0 0 0 u 00000000
111 111

cc ZZZZZZZZIll

U F m m m m m m m m m 0 1
z a m 2 rrrrrrrrr m FFFFFFFF

a 7 w w W w W w w w w W 7 Z Z Z Z Z Z Z Z

X p
t 0 z z 0 0 ce ce 666666666 g g g g g g g

LL m O W W W W W W W W W W W W W O O U U U U U U U U
1 F I I rrr rrt1FFF 1 UUUUUUUUU

0

0 E W W W W W W W W W W W W W LL LL LL LL LL LL LL LL
2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 000000000
W W W W W W W W W W W W W 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 a a a o a

5
y

0000000000000 a o 0 0 0 0 CL a a I F f I I I 1



co

s
53

OaO
v

0
N

1
C d7

CD

CO0

0 000000000000000000000000000000000 0 0 0 0 0

W
O 00000000000000000000000000000000000000

O

C

00
E
a

M co N co V O M U n 0 0 a M n 0 U n co V o O M o 0 a0 0 V o V o o 4n 43 N ao co o
E M N M 0 0 0 V U V CO 0 U CO r 0 0 CO CD Y 0 CO 0 0 V n CO 0 V V 0 V 0 0 0 V 0
a 6 O N N 4 O 6 EC o V V O V n O M V W M n m N CD 0 co N 0 V 6 O 6 U Ni U O U U

CO N U a a N CO M N M M V n U 0 CO 00 CO CO a 0 U N Sr CO U n 0
C N M N U r U U N n CO CO N

V U

m
Z

a V V V Sr Sr Sr V V V Sr V Sr V Sr V V Sr Sr V V V a a V Sr V V V V Sr V Sr V V V V V Sr

000000000000000000000000000000000000000 N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N

8 iii rnoidaaa0000000o0novnh o Oo0
N N N N N 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 N M N N 0 N N N N M N 0 N N N CO CO CO N

U U U N U n CO O O D CO CO CO CO CO CO O n O t 0 CO U U U U o V U U U U U U000000000000000000000000 0 U U0
0 O 0 0 0 000000000

CO
Z

a

WCO 1 w
Z

x i F w U UW
N 0 C

0
C

d 2 t n
LO VI

W 0 2
M

Z
J

O

0 O Z CO M M M M 3 0
co

U 7 W
J

Z O W
c O CO ac ac t

2 0 o a a 2 O n 1

c mF Z W ww W W 0 W o1I 0 Pz a

u

ww a 00 i y as cOorooa
O O co

0 2 2 2 2
n m 2 ai d a Y m z O x 4 0 QZS wJ

Z CO k aa LL z 2 LL
y x a 2 2 2 2 w H F a U O 2 W o 0 o U

000 Nwaa1 aQ UUUU2O2 2aax re511W 000

4
8 i0

z t 2
U Q W W W W 2 LL V O C7 Z LL 0 0

0 0 O w W Ztx
y W Z W O J e co W w H F F t O 2 a F 2 2 2 2 K N 1 1 1 O

o W CO O a

2

U W Z
O o
40050040Z W O W OO d W I Q J x LU OZ X

Y Y Y
00

Q e 0 2 Z Q g N a 2 a 0 2 2 2 2 m Y i w a c 3 3 II i 2 0 1 F
a CO

iO

E m
m v
0

fa E

a2 z
ov o
n o

p a0 M n
COM N CO M

C 0 CO O V U n V O V n CO
V V V V

n O
O O V O 0 a0

W 0 n O CO N CON N U n n n n a0 N O n U U V V V M M O O a0 co V M O O O V
n O V co co M 0 O O

O O O O
a0 o N M CO N O a0 O N a0 M U O a0 co m

0 O O O O O N N N N
N N N N

a0 0 0 N co co M O O n 0 0 O N O O n n n 2
V CO CO CO CO CO CO CO CO CO CO U J V CO 00 U V V O co a0 a0 V n O N N N N N N
CO M M M M M M M Y Y Y m 0 0 0 I r O N U N n N N CO N N U 0 N CO CO M N N N in

O0 Z Z b Z Z Z0

0 F
CO CO J

CO

E U w 0 0 0 0
2

Z 0 1 ai 3 0
uu w

2 z z z

c w w w w w w w w w w w X X X X g Ui z z 0 0 0 W Q Q
0 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 0 0 0 0 0 0

coC W a z i z J J
CO CO z o o

0a a a a a a a a a c9 a w

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 o a a 0 0 0 3 w o u0 000
22222222222wWwwva0uJmv7gAAH2220m9zz 001
aaaaaaa a a aaa2U222aoawwwa w zzz2 2 x 2 x 2 2 2 x 2 0 m 0 0 O x x 2

w y zW W W W W W W W W W W J J J J U 2 2 W W
W W W

LL Z N 2 2 2 n

a a a a a a a a a Q a Q a a Q a 0 0 0 u i ti i u ui U 7 7 U 2 Y
1 10 ggg7e 2

lli
O 0

V V V V V V V V V V V V V V V N V a0 00 V O N V V CO CO CO CO 0 n CO CO N N N CON N N N V
1

n 0 0 CO n n CO W CO 03 0 N CO CO 0 0 0 0

C
Z N N N N N N N N N N N M V V V V V V V V

CD g
w1

1
Z

ZW
2 U
CeLL
a

LL

z
a 10 W IX 0

o
c

0 E
F 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2

E w w w w W W W w w w w w w w W W w w w w w W w w w w w w w w w W w w w w w w
F 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 F 1 1 F F F F F 1 F 1 1 1 1 F I F 1 F F 1 1 1 F F F F F F F

co 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3



co co
a p

a

0
N

ei
13

c d
7n 1d

l0

p O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O 0 0000000000000
as

O O O O 0 O O 0 O O O 0 0 O O 0 0 O O O 0 O 0 0 0 O O O O O O O O O O O O O O
a

t

00

E
a

N M O a0 a O 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 W N 1O N 1 N a 0 M O O n a0 I 0 c0 a 0 N O a 10E 0 N 1 O n a00000000000001 a 1 aD Of N O 0 0 a0 O O 0 0 O 0 CO0 a N a ao a I
N a a0 a f0 O a0 N a0 p a M a N N a N f M a a0 O h 6 hN c0 N 1 M 00 M M a0 o P 0 11 CO 0 CO N 0 N 0 1

M 0
co

0 a 0N aN CO 1 hC N a 1 CO CO s M O 1 r

t cri
Z

M

a N

m a a a a Sr a a a a a a a a a at a a a a a a a a a a a a Sr a a Sr a a a Sr at a aW
0000000000000000000000000 0000000000000N N N N N N Q N N Q N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N

8 h 1n r A a r a s co M 10 O co 1 0 M M 1O a co 1 a to O co N A co O O O O aDN N N N O N O 0 0 0 r N N N N N N O M N N N N O O t N N N N M CO CO M Q N5 11 10 0 10 c0 10 0 11 10 10 10 10 11 10 N K L 10 10 f0 U CO N 10 4 N I if 4 N f 1f 1 Y N 1 Y
E

O O O O O O O O O O O 7 O O O O O O O O O O O O O 0000000000000

a

Z
W f Z x 2

QZ
d F W M Z N

Lii Iv
R

W W W

Q
a

J
N co OU W

Z
0 O M m Q a a 0 co u Z LL W
Y 2 Lt W H F H

W F a J 0 w In w J
cc x Y n CO CO CO Q CO U N Qm p g z w V a y

C 3 W W Z
Z Z Z Z U W 0 2 Ur Z F

0 0
d O O a

O

0
J

m
c

I 0 t0 W O O J O M
U N z O o o H z

y W n W Z
CO y x O O J

x 0 M a
D

W Z Q J J J m J Q 3
W
S a J Y CO CO

N
U 2 x qNI

m
U Y O z 2 x x x x z a x x m F 0 z x o

O a XX
W

LG

C g w O D U U U U U W Z O U a a LL
3 3 O z U o W

r Q 0 XC U F F H F 1 F 0 x W f x o
o 00o X z x W z o 0 m

8 IL Z F 0 2 m as a a a a a v Y Q a a N N U w
x U c w F w p x U p

To
a

2
0 W VLZ z W W W W W W w x W W W W W C C F J Q O w a v 3 z1

o N a a g w N F I I H I 2 0 a o a n U LL w w o a
J

Z
Y
Ne M W w a

a 3 a U m x an m 0 0 w co to o o 0 H F U o o o M x x m 3 o U F m U z 14 O w
Q ro

E N

d t ar

n E

ax z

o o 4

0 M

ik p N CO

ME
a s 1N N n a

a0 a v N 0 M 0 a 0 CO a0 a0
co

F CO I N Is
f0 10 a aO N I O t M 0 0

O O N N p a0 0 0 M CO CO a a0 O m O r ao N 10 N CO W 0 N N u N CO O CO c0 O 1n
S4 N Y Y

Yc000 N N N N CO 01 r 1 a f O CO N N 0 i 0 0 0 0
N 3 N

co a0 a0 a0 co a0 a0 c0 a0 O O a a0 1O N 0 N N N CO M M M M c CO CO O
a a N a O M M CO M CO CO CO CO CO CO CO CO CO N LO

00000000000 wZ Z Z Z Z Z Z Z Z Z Z x 1

Z
U U W W W W WW W W W W W

W N
Z Z Z F I F F F F F F F H F Z O y yW W W W W W W W W W W Z
0 0 0

00000000000
x x x x x x x x x x x U F W Z

0

W
W W W

Z Z Z z Z LLWW
FW

m CO Z Z Z Z z z F W ZE
y CO w 00000000000wm x w g

Z x x
U U U U U U U U U U U J J 4

Q
F 0

p coo
X X X X X X X X X X X y m m O J o W

v x x x 2 2 2 m 2 2 m 2 m 2 2 W W z a x W U
c m U H J W W W w W W W W W W Wm o 0 o y y y y y y y y y y x x m

LL LL LL 0 00 O x x C7 C7 x
Y W x x x x x x x x x x x x

a s 4o a s c7 O
1 0 a m W Q Q a a Q a a Q Q

Z a3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3
m m CO

x x w U 3 m CC CC CG z z CL m CLzDoc m
W w x x x

x r w w E W
J

J m gQQ gQ g g x cn
I F W W w J J J J J J J J J J J Z Z e

U x m W 2 x x x 2 x 1 1
U ca J J J u a a a a a a a a a a z z m x H

H W W W W W W W W WW W CO zD0 0 W W m U M0 0 Z
W 0000000C00002 z a a a a a a a a a a a x x m co o P a a a a a a a a a m U

M CO CO CO CO 1 r n 1 1 n r 1 1 N n 1 00 CO n N r a 0 CO0 0 a a a t a Sr a a a a N a10 N N N N N N N N N N N M COM 1 CO 0 CO0 0 CO 0
c

a a 0 10 0 1O1 1 0 a0 O O f0 a0 CD a0 CO CO c0 CO CO c0 10 1 N CO 0 r

co

FZ
1 H F 1 H F F F F F F H FW
Z Z Z Z Z Z Z Z Z Z Z Z Z
W W W W W W W W W W W W W

X a 6666666666666
3 x x x x x x x x x x x x x

0

0 W W W LU W W W W W W W W WIL a x x x x x x x x x x x x x x x x x x x x x x x x x 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 00 E w w W W w W W W W W W w W w W W W W W W W W W w W a a a a a a a a a Q a
g a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3

C7 10 3 3 3 3 333333333333333333333 w co co w c c CO
W

U c c c c twn



N 2

m
to co
a o

a

0
N

3
c d

P

0

0 O O O 000000000000000000000000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0m
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0a

Z

0O

E
Q

cv 0 0 o a a 0 CO O o 0 o a 0 a rn n h o 0
CO O n

E a m M co n n a n o v N a o N W a a O n v a 0 o v
n COCO 00 pnj 03 VV r W N

O g i Oi N V a 2n a N 0 a 0 N inci
O O O O

M N N N fD O O O O N O N O 01 O fV D N pp 1
N O

N M M M

Z
M

Z

m a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a Cr a a a a a a 0 O Cr a a a a a a a a a a a
0 0 0 0 0 000000000000000000000 00 N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

8 O M V W M M f M M
N N N N N N N F N N N

O O O O O O N N O M O M O
0

O cc 0 0 a W N N N N co N 0Q N O N O N N N N Ou 0 0 O CO O 0 CO 0 N 4 V 0 M no 4 O CO 4 CO h N 4 t M 0 N 0 i f 4 1 N h O l 40000000000000000000000000040 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

f x S

n
w

F a
0

J

5 w a m

0
z Y a 2 n z

n
0
CI o Z O ce 00 o U F 0

0 O 0 m K LL
3 W W CO

o vi o 0 o LL U W Z d co y ai W g
O d d d co O n 0 0 d W d V W Q

NQ ga a o o a
co O 1 O I U O u W n W W

a p VS v3 o eN c a d m N U z Y Q

ce
ro 0

O m m m
IN

Y rn
co N

x 0 x x a W O m
J X Z d 1 U S

LU

Ste gg3 oc3oaaNm w as z
0 fO z i z a a w C7 F w w O

reill

Ij W V m x 17 a 3 17 w
To o a a a a1 0 w W w W W y U v U 0 a g N0yy f LLi LLi w o o o O 0 a

Q

Q
z o LL O n

c N S x x
z i 3

w

o 3 3 0 x x
o

a z O Q J w w w X x 0 5 6 Q x O d 0 0a o h w CO S H rn co x J H U V J K O K Q Q O J 2 Q O Q W

Q io
F F a U U U x x O O O D U f x x

C
m m

E m
e v
a o a

o E
d a

OC Z

8
a 0 O 0 CO 0 0

o
CO

o 0 0 0 o n
c Q I

4

N M
C
oika a a a a a

a a M vi O LC o a o M a COOD W n n n CO N n n 0
00 COO 0 N 0 m a M n n n 0 M a

O O O N N N 4I
0

N O O
Si

n O
CO 0

O
a 0 N a

O

t co a s W 0 N 0 0 N ta a O O N N M N n n co O O 0 0 0 N
O LO N U1 O O O O 0 N N CO CO V N C coN N N N M M M M M C OCO NM M M M M M M M M O

X

Z Z Q
Z Z W CO
J J F coQ

W W a 0 0 w
w

0 0 CL U U U

0 0 N Q

E CC X OF Z Z W V

2 w w

a x x a z wern
ti oc z xzC

J
Y 3 3 Q m

Y Y Y Y Y Y Y W W W W W W W W W O X
y Y j x x

Q

0
O 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

x z x o x or x x

z 0a a a Z J x Z x x x Z 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 Q Q Q Q z
aaa

J E6 ZS O x x Q
w w w w w w w

3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 p
O O O W W W W W O O U

w w
n LL LL Z

w
U U W W J J J J J J J Q Q Q Q Q a Q Q Q

W W x x

LL

Z Z Z F Q
y F COU m

Q

COm COm

Q

COm m 00 m x x x x x S x w Q
d o W O O O O O x x w O 0 7 W O O

N

m w cn U
Q N co N W W W W W W W W W LL

co

0 0 0 U 0 0 0 O U LL LL 0 x x x Y J J 2 COD QU Q Q Q Q Q Q Q Q Q Q
a s a N O 4 O 0 0 N

f1 0 0 O n CO CO M n 0 0 O W D O 0 a a a a a a a a a M a0 O O O N a a a a a n M f N n n 0 n 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 F NC N M M M a a a a t0N N CO CO CD ao CO op CO

ZW
I

FXzF F F I F F F F F F F F F F F F F F F F F F F F F F F FLU
Z Z Z Z Z Z Z Z Z Z Z Z Z Z Z Z Z Z Z Z Z Z Z Z Z Z Z

02 WW W W W W W W W W W W WW W W WW W W W W W

P aaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaa
x W recexcerecerecexceccrecercreccrercrerecceetteerecece 0
0

0
F F F F F F F F F F F F I F F F F F F F F F F F F F F

LL m W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W 10 E Q QQQ Q Q Q Q Q Q Q Q Q Q Q8 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 W W w W w W w w w w w
U

O
n co N co u 0 N u n CO CO CO CO U CO CO CO CO CO CO co co co N CO LL LL LL LL LL LL LL LL LL LL LL

MCCCLCCCCCCCLCCCC



co 2
0

dO
3 66
a 0

a

0
N

el

C
CO

3 a

m

m

a 00000000000000000000000000000000000
0 0 0 0 0 0 00 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0a

c
00
E
Q

E
co 0 O co 0 co O O 0 O N CD CO O O O CO

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 i N 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 00 00 0 0 01
CO 0 O M O O O O t0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 N CO I CO O N N 0 0 00 0 0 0 V N N 0 0 N 0 V 0 CO00 C O N CV 7 ij V

t0 O 0 f0 0 0 0 O h f0 l0 V f0 N N f 1 Co LO 00 co f O 04 O ODN
V O V CO M CO O r r O T c D1co

M
in
Z

N v V V v V v V V V V V V V V v V V V v V V V v V V V v V V V V V V V V V V V V V V
0 N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N8 a s co a M a

0 O O CO CO CO O CO 00 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 OD CD CO M C0 O N O CO n N 0 0 O0 O N 0 0 N in M N N N N N N N N N N 0 0 7 N N N 7 0 N 0 O 7 N N N NCO co O O O O 10 O O O O O 0V 1 10 IO 0 0 p O O O LO LO u1 0 0 10 0 O V 4 O O O O O OC O O O O O O O 0 0 0 O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 O O
LL

m F
0

z

a ai v 0
Q a w

OI
g

m
co Z Y F

U 0
0 W

o M p X W z
O CO it 0

o p F a W W

uu
O

Lo

w a
W

g icuCeaW
a

a
r 1 U

H F p Z c6 v J
vi

r h

W Z O O fn O a f J
CO CO

O x x O O co
p a w U

x
co co co co co co

x x x x x
w

2

Q
z a V W V N p

iii

as p
Y U U fn O O Z a Q Q Q a Q Q Q U W O LL 1 a F Y

LL J

ac a OaO a m m@ m zh a inOHw LL8 W W x p
m x 3 3 3 3 3 3

w
Z m 11 O

g o m U m a z 1 x z
cL

V
W

W J cc O W IT W J J J J J J a U
al C9

z LLO 1
W W z z z z z z z

U
z

6 H W
m
Ill J

w
w 0

J ce p
o C7 Et n a Z a Z O O O D U U co zJ a p a w

O
0 0 0 WU 0

Ill ILI

0 Q O Q IT 0 w W O m i
3 w w0 w CO O w w w w w w 1 1 p O a 1 a m

J co H 2 Fc
a mm mw0nLL Oa

C N

E acO
a c A

a E
0 7
cc z

N
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 Z Z N N O V O

0 co 00 o 00 CO CO n

n CO

OD O O OCV CV
a

N N N N N N M W O O hC
V V V O co O N N N O O N CO

N
0 a V N N f V N V V V V Ni V V V V V

co CO N O M
r

O n N N N
co 9

N
ZS N O N W CO N V 0 O C0 0 O N N o h 0 0 0 1 1 0 O 0 NI 0 P n n n O0 00 CO CO

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 N Of 0 0 CII W 0 CO

co co co n
V CO 0

O h N N N N N N O N N NN N N N N V
CUs31 M 0 V O P 0 f f 0 0 O

V V O O O O O O O N N N N N N V O O M M M M N CA N
I CO CO

U to
0 1
W U

U UCO
p Z Z Z Z Z Z

COIX
0

j7 W W 1
0 111 a a 0 0 0 0 0 0 In m U U U U U m

O z z z z z Q

Z Z ll On I
U CO W y N W W On N CO h 0 CO a Z Z 0

0

F F F F F O w w
I I

m x X a 0
3 3 3 3 3 m

0000000000000a z
Y

co
F n w O O O O O O t O O O O O a

Z

W W Q n 3 Z u W 2 2 Z Z Z Z a U U U U U U V a d d d d d y Q Q Q Q Q Z p
LL LL O Y w

y y Y
4 W Z Z W LL LL W W W W W W W

a a a Q a Q a a J J J J J CeU LL LL LL LL LL LL Z F 1 F F I F U U U U U U w U Um W LL LL LL LL LL LL W CO N CO CO CO q CO p p 0 Z Z W W W W W z uJ g O J O M 7 7 C7 Z W W W W W w O p p a X 11X1Wm U w LL LL x x x X1 1 Z m 22222222 g 0 0 0 O O corn
LO N N 00 co O h 1 O O 0 0 0 0 0 V 0 M M CO CO CO CO V V V V V O V 0 0 0 0 0 00 OV O N V CO 1 CO M M CO M M O 1 01 0 CA 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 N co M 00 O O0 C0 O N V OU

7 7 N N N N CO M M M M M V V V V V V V V V O O O O O O O O O O O O O u i 1 CO

1ZW
2

1cc
O as
x

w

o
p

LL
C

0 E
F W W w W W w W W w W W W W W W W W W W W W W w W W W W W W W W W w W W W W W W w W

U LL LL LL LL LL LL LL LL LL LL LL LL LL LL LL LL LL LL LL LL LL LL LL LL LL LL LL LL LL LL LL LL LL LL LL LL LL LL LL LL LL



fn

00a c
v

0
N

a

c a
y

m
p

0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0

0

000000000000000000000000000000000 0

00000000000000000000000000000000a

c
00

E
Q

E O co
00 O

O 0 in CO M O CO N O o 0 0 0 0 N co O as N r 01 a co 41 0 c0 O 00 00 p co0 CO CO O 1b 0 N CO 0 0 0 N O N 4 4 4 V 0 10 to O O co r 0 co co co co CO C0N N 4 f a 0 V m
c c0 M r V

O 4 V V 0 c0 N cO c0 N 00 O 4 V M O 0 N 47 M 0 4 fVC f0 r V V M V
r

N N V O ID 0 V N

N N
O

N N N N N M 1 0 cD r
11

O
N

m
Z

m 4t V

V V V V V V V V V V V V v V V V V V V V V V V V V V V V V V V V0 0 0
00000000000000000000000000000000NN N

N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N Nc h Co m co
0

C
0

O f0 0
0

co CB a 0 0 N In to fn co t0 N fn 75 co In CB co in NN N N N 0 N 0 M N N M 0 N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N
C O O co 4 to co 4 co N N 4 4 t0 11 co CD N 1f 4 4 in U 4 4 V N V 4 V N CO 4 CO UCl

0 0000000000000000000000000000000

Qg zW w
cc

o O
La

O

w Z 0 oV a O
W cc

2 j V fn w z 3 z
p CO W p W

NN c
O U

Z
co 1 M a O LL FF 0 Q Z O 2

o CL J o Q Q 00 Q el Z LL
d

w 0 2 Q W

Ill
U Z iz h d

G
W Q c0 V N r O U a OCO

c
V 0 z Z w W V p X F u y

000 w fwi w O z F
V m O O a a u I o W U fwn

O

O O z w W N J f a O w
cc

p
J

0 2 U Z Z O U d d 0

fo z fi
00 O a i w U w W i m 2 Z fn z Q v a F z Z 1 Q1 F z Y O

a CD a w w u r
U

Z Q Z Q t O U H tn W w O H F O U O 0 o
CD fq LL w Z o Y k U a a 3 J

0I
w 0 Z w ill o w w U

Z0 W
O

W F
Z W

f

O

Q O F J m u W W Q4Q Q
U Q 1 O 0

Q
i O Q fsf Z p V c7 O

O
Q
0

2 0 to 1NNNyO O W
o o w

O
Z

Z O Q F
IJl LL

U
2 W W O W J p w Z O O Q co p 0 H

a
m Q a co F U J J V Q U a ix 2 6 Q U J o JO to co O OJ Q wQ c0

0 m

E m
W 0
a

8 E
D J

CL z
toM

00

2

M CC
4 4 4 4 tD N 0 0 0 O O CO CO CD O O CO OCD CD f0 CO 0 0f0 t0

0 O W O CO 00 4 CO 00 CO0 100 M
N

10 M r r N N N V V V VC N N N N N N N N N N M M M M M M r r fA co
Z O

V
00 V

N t CO h CD
N

V V V V V V V V V V V V V V V V V V V
N

O

N V ONO N O V c0

0 N CA 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0m N

V p a o 0 0 CO c0 N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N NDv 0 co V F N N V 0 N co 0 N N r V co V 4 4 M 4 V N V h 4 t0 4 O 10 10 4

Z W Z Z
DM

W a O O
re Z CL

Q CO W U U
C7 U W J

CO
w

U

Z
t5 O fn w

wccE O 0 w

z
co

z O a w 2 2 o
X z O

ixa d 2
CO O D U Q U Q

O U H CO F 3
F

CL O O O I
O V V H La F F Z a O V Y vi z Q Q Q Q Q Q Q Q Q Q Q Q Q Q Q Q Q Q

0y w U O O g a a w O i Z Z z Z Z Z

igCL o
U
o

U
OXxacaicQiaUwviuiuiaifniuiviaiaiaiviviaiaifivi

DO
co

U U p p W U C7 2 J i J

O rCO OM W 1 OO 0 N r r O V V 0 4 M CO N M M M M M M M 0 M M M M M M M M M M47 10 0 0 V7 O OD M 1 0 0 CD 0 0 0 0 Co 0 O 0 CA 0 0 0 CO 0 0 0 0 0N N N N NC ao O V

W M M V V V V V 4 V V V V V V V V V V V V V V V

0z
F z
z w u

w a

w w
p

Z

a
w W

X Ow LL p

c w 13
0 F Z F W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W WE c 00000000000000000000000000000000J J J J J J J J J J J J J J J J J J J J Jma 3

000000000000000000000000000000000U ME 0 a a a a a a Cl a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a



O C

Q0LO
0 co
m o
a v

0
N

C dJ

m

CO

70 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 O 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
00000000000000000000000 O O O O O O O O O O O O 0 O 0 0 O
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0a

Z

00

E
Q

E
1

O N 0 0 0
CO

0 0 CO U O O O

a co 0 co Off 10 N 1n 03 0 et 0 0 O 0 0 0 0 0 0 N CO CD0 0 0 0 et 0 et 0 U 0 O 0 a O U et 01 0 U N 0 CO 0 O 0 0 r 0 COM h U 00 U m UO 0 CO
H M n 0M N M O 0D M 7 n n 00 V 4 O O W c0 aOD

O t0 0r a0 O
C 0 N R 0 N N CO CO a0 M

N V
CO

0
1

N
N e

h 0 sr
of CO

0 Nz

u v v 4 v v v et a v v et v v v v
et v et et v v et et et a a v et v a R et v t oCO

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0N 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 N 0 N 0 0 0 0 0000000000000000000000y N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N NO
0 W

I

O 0
01 N N

CO
N

0
01 N

0 CO

LO O

10 0 CO M CO CO N A f n IA f 0
O O N M N N N N N N N N M O O N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N0 t0 U U 10 10 N U U U 10 1f U U U N f0

U 1f N U co 4 1f U U U LO U U LO N U t0 1D U U U NC 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
000000000000000000 O O O O

U CO W m 0 Q
5 a w m LLO ym

w co

m
J N o a W cc w 3 0 oww

W
W O

v N 3 Z
w LL O w R5

w NaXWXS LLOz a U JNina m s J N
a

U LL
m

W Q N fn g N I
001 U CO U I 1 r v FO w o O

o a vOi z p
co

r N m a a z y
m O v N m m m m i

CO CO CO CO 03 0 RWZ
F Y O a a

ar mQm0wwMLL y II 10 4 m2a1
0

0
W m U U U Z Z 2 W F W p 0 Z

W
Z Z Z Z J

Z F Z Z z
J O m a a J Z J

WI U w ag 4a g a z z a 0 a a a a w w w w
Z
w LL

x
w wC5aLLZF 1 1 ar mpx fn FzFammam J LL

mr

N 2aLLuzzzo06 01F0000Q 0wwfnciw w p 0 0 0 0 0 x p w w w

Q
a

ii

m a J U 2 0 0 0 J U m 2 U m m x x U a N v N et Q U Q U U U Q U 3 J a Q J N U

O 2
E m

LIa a E
mIx Z

1

0
co M ao

0 CO ect11
03 03 CO

n

C
00 0 CO

COO co
t n h U 0 0 0 N LO N 0 p0 CON CO00 0

p DIN
0 Mt CO O sr n M I O co et n V et

0 N 0O
CO 2 M n Y 1 1 0 00 ik Ile

t t46 i nU 0 N f0 CO I CO I 0 0O O
1 10 U 0 0O r

n
10 U M M

0

et et tf et et NI 1 O is M M CO 0 c0 co
0

0
0 0 0 e t 10 OD I N r N O O U U 0 0 0 0 0 0 NO n M O N

00 O
N N

N N
CO

N N
N N N N

r
CO
N

CO CO CO
1 I

CO N N N N N N NM n M 1n N N N U 2 D M 1n N f0 1A N U U U n n I I f r I U U U U U U f

O

ILI 111
0y F I H CO

W
W W W z

U U U U
N Z w

CO CO m Z co O O O O w w w w w w w w
1Ep W y w w w fA

m
O Z Z 2 Z 0 0 0 U U U U U

Z u Z Z Z Z Z F r z z z z

02 O in y to P 2 O
W W W W w H N w w W wC 2 CO m CO I Z z Z Z I 0II m J J J JO p

I y p N J LL m J W W W W r r r r r r r r
12 p 2 2 z Z w Z z z Z

r p 0 N W O O O O
m m m m m m m

F

w Q z J J 3 U 111 III 141 v m

U z p m c m z m w a0
p 0

a m m z g w x z z z z w
ui u7 U Q Fw H H O z O LL m a 111111111U1 U U U U U 0cr

o f In co c 0 2 0 0 0 0 J 0 0 Ow z 4 qS4 Q

X m m

w w
J

U 2 2 2 O LL LL LL LL O
I CO F p tl lJ ll lIl g g g g g a n m m fn 6 oce mom m m x Z z Z Z 0 w X a Q Q Q O O O O O O O O

g 2 0
2 O a Oct m co mF 521 a m p 0 o o 0 z z z z z Z 2 z

g1
0 0 0 0 0 I 1 N 01 0 1104 CO e 01 CO r I 1 0 0 CD 0 et CO 0 e 0 v n n I I 0 0 0 0 0 0 W O M M M M M 1n ui

0N r I n I f CO CO CO CO CO CO CO CO 0 CO CO 0 0 U nU N 10 1D CO CO f0 U h CO CO CO CO CO O 0
N N N N N CO CO CO CO M M M M V et et et et U N

Zw
1
m WU

o a J

X
w a

O

0 E
W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W FD Ce CO K K CC M CC ar K ar CO CCE 0000000000000000 Q g g Q g g g g g g g g g g g g gco 0000000000000000 m CO m CO m m m CO CO m CO CO CO CO m CO CO CO CO m m CO5 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1111114 J J J J J J J J J J11111



r

iim
co O

a v
0
N

4

ca
m
0

11 0 0 0 0 0 000000
O 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

E
00

EQ
N in 0

E N N 0 01 I0 0 0 GOO 000000000000000N ri d o c N a GD o u
C a a co

O co f0 O O
ci O u W to to ui O O to N N u 0 uiN M t0 0 a a a s O h a 0 0 ci CO

A
C tvn CO

N
CO CO

u

acri ro Ma N
0 RI

O

m a
7 t0

Z

m
as

a a a a a a a a a a

a a a a a a a v a a a v a a a a a c a a a a a a a0 N N
O

N
0 0 0 0 0 0

0000000000000000000000000N N 01 N N N

N N N N 01 N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N NN O O O
0 O 0 0 a to N a to to to N N to N to 10 to to to N N to to to co co r NO 0p 01 0 0 0

00400000000000p
p cpp cpp p

0 0 0
CD CD in ul 0

0 000000 0 O 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 O cc 0 0 0 O O O 0
N 0
O 0

N 0 O 0
O O O O w
N CO 4 0

OCO
O O
01 el

C N
ik111

w w 9 9 a

a p co
w O v

coatJ00a
Ill J

o C
o w O w o 1111 Wp o wp CD

0 0
go a4 qc

Q
G U O o Z Z

H H Z

f
ro O Z a a a Y Y s a Q a Q a a a a g

g r O O O ac
v

z z Q Q COZ z
m m 65 a

co m m m m CO d a w 63 o m co m
c2 4 m

p
U U

0
z z z z z z z z z z z z z z z z z z z z

F z

0

W
m rn 0 0 0 0 0 0 w w 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

to w 2 U O O LL W
W W o vi m m 0 0 C CO co co N co co co co y m to y co CO CO y coo Y mil a a o o

J to N U m CO CO CO to CO m CO N CO CO CO CO CO CO CO CO CO to CO
a F H a O Q Q y h m ai y v Q Q u ai ai y ai y y N CO ai N N CON 0 to M 4 a a c M M 4 N C7 M N M M M C7 a NQ C
E 44
O m
E co
0

ala

2 E
G 7
m z

m 0 a 0 0 O
O

M Q M V G O
O O 01

m 00 O CD N 0 A W
O O O Oto 4
e a

a v a a
o o a a a a a a a a a a a a v a a a Sr a a a a a a a aN

d a a N NN N
0

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 O 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
N

R O O O O O N 0104 N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N NN N t to N N

O CO 1 CO CO O CO O 0 CO 10 0 0 0 0 CO 0 CO 0 0 CO O CO O O

CO

W
E U W W m CO

re Ce W
Z 0 0 7 7

co W

CO CO
O

Cr p 1 w CO O

moo H H
ug ug Q Q U Q

3
m 2

z

o YY mzz zwviw2gawxvgCL
w o o O c oo Fz ix 0m z m z K w 2 w w I aILI

zzD U U d 2 7 7
Q w Z Z Z Q O 2 Z QZ

U Y
F Q OW

w x X 7 7
0 0

0 0 0 w 0 O Z 7 U
Li

LL Q Q 0 2 Z 0 0 W W co Z Z
CO CO

I 1 a s w O w 2 a a a d a LL w W
co cd

W

O 10 X X U U U U J YQ X 7 7 0 0 0 Q 0 W W W QQ w w z Q Q Q W 7 7Q a0 m m m U U U U U 0 0 0 Lu W W 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
p

I
N N 0 f0 f N c0 O 0 0

N OD o VI 0 CO CO 0 0 a N a t
r N CO

a 0
et a CO O 0 0 0

0
O n co co co O a s 0 0 0C in n O O a s

N N N 0 0 0 0 0 a

1zW
cc 0

cc O 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0Z Q a
z Z Z z z Z Z Z Z Z Z z Z Z z Z Z Z Z Z Z Z z z ZX o mZi Q m m m m m g g g g m m m g g m g g g m ng g g g g m

YYY p FF1 1II 3 QQQQQQQQQQQQQQQQQQQQQQQQQ0
m m m F m m m m m m a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a o a a a a a a a a

0

E 0 0 0 0 0 0
12

U U U U U U U U U U U U U U U U U U U U U U U U Ua o a a a a
4 cam m m m m m m m m

z z z z z z z z z z z z z z z z z z z z z z i i z
707700000700070700000070



CV

0ID
mm
m O

a
0
N

Cci
a

c d
7

d

O

a o 0 0 0 000000000000000000000000000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 00000000000000000000000000

4

70
E

E
0

00000000000000000000000000000000000000000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 06 6 6 Cn N O O N N N O 6 N O O h ci 6 In 0 0 ui ui 6 6 O N CC CA O N CJ ui to O O CA CO O O Oco V CD V V V C 00 CO CO n CO V n CO C V CO C n u u CI CO C CO V CO CO V CA OD 1 00 V V 41 C MC

Nz

GSe v V V V v V V V V V V V O V V V V V V V V V V V V V V V V V V V V V V V V V V V V
000000000000000000000000N N 04 N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N
O O 0

ul

C0Cp 0
LC

0 0 0 0 0 0
tO

0 0 0 0
ul 40

0 C0 0 0 0 0
0

0 0 0 0 C0 0
0p

0 0 0
0p 441 0 0 0 441 0 0

C O O 0 O 0 0 O 0 04 0 0 0 0 O 0 0 0 O 0 0 0 CO O 0 ti 0 0 O CO O 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 COC

C0

c W W W W W W WW W W W W W W W W W W
0 0 W O O O 0 0 O O p O W W O 0 W p p

r a a a a a Cl a a a a a a a a a a a aN mm mm co co co co co 0 co cn co 0 co o conva 2 co co cocnuuococoz z z z z z z z z z z z z z z z z z z z z z z z z z z z z z z z z z z z z z zIx o 0 0 0 o W o 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 o W o 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
V Cn Cn Cn V Cn p Cn to Cn V Cn Cn CO N Cn N CO N CO CO CO CO CO Cn to CO 0 CO CO CO CO O Cn CO CO CO CO CO CO CO COCn CO CO V 0 CO CO CO CO CO 0 CO CO CO CO CO V CO CI O O 0 O 0 h CO CO CO CD N V CO CO V O CO CO CO COO N co W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W ce W W W W W W W W WCO CO CO CO CO Q CO O CO CO CO CO CO N Cn CO V 03 CO CO C CO CO CO CO CO V CO V CO CO Q CO V U CO CO V CO CO COa s co c e C7 M a N C7 M C7 N Ch CI N N M N VI N N N C N C7 Ch 07 N M a Ch N N 49 M N N NnQ c0

E m
T V

a S E
0 7

m z

8

c

v V V V V V V V V V V V V V V V V V V V V V V V V V V V V V V V V V V V V V V V V
00000000000000000000000Q N N N N N N N N N N N N N QV N N N N N N N N N N N QV N N N N N N N N N N N N N N
CO CO 40 CO CO CO CD CO CD CO CO CD CD CO CO CO CD CO CD CO CD CO 40 CD CD CD 0 CD CD CD CO CD CD 0 CD CD CO D CD CO CD

J
W

2 CO

E W
z IX

t0 m
W Si W

C gCO WZ
J W W W Z U Y

2 2
F

v W W Z
Z

Z Z O O 2
O O U z ul k J re

C 2 g J z J d J W 2 2
zxrD cci

2M
zZ

2 Z a Ili v Y fY

co

2 W W Z J O F m u O
Z I m

ill W
0

0 a a F

Z Z
W

o o v g 5 F w o a re m 1n 2 Z C 3 a m m a Ce u J Q Wc w Z
0 0

r1

fY N 2 F H p O Z W
W S C7 O

u O y O z
p N

Zco co 0 co ujui0
Z 2 ce x m ci JF 0 0 co 0 w w a w o z 0 1 1 CZ o1 H v H ui S Z Z a W W Y H j Z

O O W Z Z O 7 F W Q W O 00000 z O F W a a x x x m J

a O W O OYYYYYJa2 2zaamm m3Wmmmc
0 C O m m r n D O CD O to D N c0 O CA CO V O M

4
N D OD O O 6 CD O O

Nf C VN C7 v M V V W CA C7 V CO O V CD N m CO W
N

N N V CO CD CD CA O CO D n n
0

P 0
C

V V V V V V V V V h CO CO CO CO O CO 0 CO CO n r f OCO CO CO CO O CO CO D D O to 0 W 0 W

1ZW
CC p 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 COO 0 0 0 0 0 0 00 0 CIO 0

Z Qa z zz z zz z z zz z z z zz z z zz z z z z z z zz zz z z z z z z zz z z z zz z zz zz z z z zz z
o W g m g m g g m g g g m g g m g g m g g g m m g g g g g g m g g g m g m m g g g m g

Q a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a aLL a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a 0 Cl Cl a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a0 E 0 0 0 0 c 0 0 0 C 0 0 0 0 v 0 0 v 0 v 0 v v 0 c 0 0 C v c 0 v 0 v 0 0 0 0 v v 0 0
g z z z z z z z z z z z z z z z z z z z z z z z z z z z z z z z z z z z z z z z z z



2

a0
idm
as 0

a v
O
N

ri

C
a

3 a

a

a0

0 O O 0 000000000000 0 0m 0 0 0 000000000000 0 0a

Z

00
E
Q

E 00 00 0
O N Off n 00000000E

o o g 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 TrO 0 O of 0 0 0 of vi 0 0 of 41 C

YO N CO N 1fl CO CO 0 Co CO N 0 N 10
N 1A

Z
C

a v v v v a v v v a v v v v v
p 000000000000
Q

N N N N N N N N N N N N N N
v 0 0 O O tO CO O O C CO 0N CO CO N N CO N N

CD 1 N 1n V 0C 0 0 CO 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

NcoN
Z

cn O
M h m a

0S
CD 0 0 0U 0

C
0 S 0

Jo a w v Z

O 1 1A O
w 0

m 00 g
v 0 J 1 1 Z 2
cm

O CD CO CO U CO a F p I W 0
m oo a aILco co wW2C

ifs o W W W UO Y 2 a d F 2 0 0 Z
L N

CO
UJ 111 2 w OO a co co z 2 p a Fw c wa

0
N N U 3 m v co co S y O fn N a

Q CD

m a

E as
m
a

m O cv co

zym rn
N C O u
W M Xk co a0 CD

V V V v 4 A V N r0 a N
O O 0 0 0

0
0 0i 0 N co

N N N N C8 N U U N n n N 0CD CD m 1i 0 1n 0 0 1 v n

w Q

4 LL U Z
y O W

ILI Ill a I re
0

I a0E p p wW 3 a
z z z p a

o 1 w x x g g g uc 0
0 a Q U U it 2 2 2 0 a

cJZ Y Z U re J J W r W 0
S W Q

Z
U 0 O J J1 CO

W W Y W 2 2 W 0 0
Y V Z U h U U F j

Q
7 w W

m y u Z Z 0 0 i Q1 a m
10 CD n N N CO CO CO

1 CV CD 0 CO CO O n n n m COm U mN a N 1 10 CD 0 CO 0 CO C 7
O O

Z
CA C

Q N

m

Zw o

2 a H c
co

z z z z m a
O a ocW m 0 Fx O J J

c 0o C N
IL m a s c

CO CO
2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 70 m m

0 E U U F Cn Co CO C0 CO CO CO CO CO CO h CO I C7 U p U
X a X CL a a CC CL M a a X r cc a

U
O O O O O O O O O O O O 8
1 1 F 1 H I i I H F F H CL



7

I

U 5 D
th

2 CO
0 ro

kw 0 c cr
c c g m

0o v K
a CD 73

k VI 0

7 7
rP

rD

ta
vl

C 0 0
CL 0 13

1 Is
0

0
e

rt

U
o

E

a D
q 3 c VS

k

7 g
w

et

j
0 3 7 3

CM k 0 2 0

00
0

n
M LA VI 7 R u1

3 2 C C 0
co 0 O

3
LT 0 0

m 0

7 0 e

0
f

@ 3

F 0
0

0
C

0

7

0
3

13



0

T
CCC 0 lL C A O O O n r

0
T

G F co
7 D n T 1 O T r 0 T

a ro Q S d N W j d p D N
N

r Q K p 3 Q j N d rro D d N W d
CO D TCU

m 3 p o
v n n r

n

g x x R 0
N H rro 7 rho o 7 j n n 3 3 In vii 0rD

6

ruOi
r

A 3 1 n 0 O C rD co C
n 3 a w 0

v 0
D 3 n ii

m

T

N00 w F F O f in W A
I00N A I U1 NJ N F 1 F W t1 01 N CON A W A 01 A V V V A V W FA 01 n at N 0 W 0 CI A A N F N OD W N In O N O l0 W 01 A 01 N VI

nO 0 to O Ns D O O1 O W F O O W I VI Vl O O O Co00 W A00 V A N IDD Oo A Ut CO O O A 0 0 0 0 0 D O COO W 01 n 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
CD O
7ID
N

A W A N N

0 Dal
N 7

rA V FA W A N F A O V CO LDD 00 0
n

V CO Ol O F lr

D W t4 O W Y N W W W 00 A O A 0 0 O N O W O V 00 W W a
N N D A Dl N N CO l0 v VD CO W CO 5A A A 0 CO F 0 A V

O N F w tD W F Ul 0 W 00 CO W 01 l0 DW F N W CO NJ l0 0 D I Us D F V N V N Ln N A CD 00 A Co F

OCD
N r
0

W F
y

V F

0 o
V D r 00 Ul 0 01 In Mal A 0 0 NJ 01 Vl 1 0 W

N N N
N I

0 CO V
N

A

D A N
V O
N 00 00 C

A O O

0 I Ns 0 0 m nN
A N F A

D

F O1 A N N F A N

OOS V N 0 A 0 N N UI D C
P tD 00 Ol N A N cis

N
W

7

NA 00 N V 0 I it tD
E d

VD V N D A F V V n
V

1r
0

4 0 0 0 O0
oe

T

N W 1 F u
N 0

D D
W W A

co

O D
V A W co
V 0

0

C
01 N 0 O 0 O0

0 r

O W r
A 0 O O O N T

tot NA
N W N I

C O T n
V N O W W

D
A w O

N A A CO V
FA

V W W N E t71Vl N V O Ut 01 N Ul 01 00 F V 1D d W d O

co V A 1 0300 0n
0

N N W N N N 0A 00 Ut LID 0 t0 A N 7

A

CO 00 NNJ 00 W 00

T

F
W ul to A

N
COV n VI 00 W

O 00
r

00 0 00 12 00

R
N

A A A D 0
O O O A V n p
r 01 Sr A

A
W

V W w V A A A i nN N to N A A
r

A V CN A 00 N 00 00 CO 0

o o

T

A O O F

O W W O O O O
co

O Cco 07ry
0

0 O O r 0 F F

O0M In
O O

O
0 O O 0

O O 0 0 n
rD

N F N L

0
A W V W W N D N
O w W H W

D t0
00 00 N C

A W O A N O
N

Ln NJ Lo
N

00
g

O O O O W O

r

Ln W 1 cn

TC7CL
0

N

o e o oe

N N I
F W F In W N F 01 444 A

A A F 00 N O N V

P N O O 0
FA

O
0 F i 0 V 0 V 1 0 In Ul 0 0 O a

A F n A C 0 Ut 0 0 0 0 0 0 ArD

W W l
F N 0 F N I F F F D

D
d0

0 00 A F V A N 00 N N 0 W N 00 W C T

O O w0 O 0
C

0
T F 001 W 0

UJ CO A O W o

F 0
0 A 0 al In

N F



p K K K K K K K K K C E ON K T

g
r n

vi EL EL EL EL EL EL EL EL EL EL m c
co A

0 O O O CC1w w w w w w w w w 0 0 0

m
000000000 a ED Q 3Q C n
c c r1 n c c el el el r c 1 0 m r1 0 0 0 m D00000000000 0 01 Q

CD fl 07 n CD v r

W W 0 o
3 W

r
COm w cl w

r1
w

A A 0

0 o D

w
me

n

3
O O O O O O O 0 O O O O O O O O O O O
01 01 01 in A J In N W W N In W O O O r
Ul Ul Ul Ul Ul Ul U1 U1 Ul O Ul U1 Ul O Ul O I1 I D 70
O O O O O O O O O O O O Ul O O O O V O rrr

K
0

N i F 1 N I I 1 1 t0 h NJ 1 t0 00 V C

I N NJ N 1 NJ NJ NJ NJ I NJ 1 N I i
W W W w N W W W W A W t0 Ul N t0 G
N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N 0
O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O w
I1 i k 1 I I1 M I F4 I 1 N Ix I F1 Ik I NV V V V 01 01 01 01 01 Ul Ul 4N p 4N 4N 4N

W W W N G
00 fDO
11l o w to m D nI W V t0 t0
4N 1 1 W 1 1 V 1 In I N

S
in

Ul NJ 1 O4 w nNJ t0 t0 Ul v 0 rt

n Ft

W W 10 W lrD 0
NO 0 t0 0

0
Q1 P

0 0
O T O m

V 00 W p
4N l i

c

00
NJ CO t0 00

V Q N

1

W NJ
cO V 1

O N 1 O1 W 01 O
V n 00 U1 O

I I i N i I I I 1 1 W d1 i 1 l0 l0 i O 1
O W V O1 00 00 in

U1 NJ t0 0 NJ 01 01

N F 70
T

O 0 U1 U1 0pCT N 1 N
t1W1 1 1 N 10 i i i 1 1 1 1 1 t N

W
00 t0 N V

7

V
r

n

1 11 0 Q
V

w to in n
W w w

1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 O F
00

wo p

W
F

O 01 4N 01 I 1 O T v

O O O
0

Ul I v C F

W 0 00 OO 0 00 I

CL

t0 0 1 0 0 0 Ul
CL



4r
Meeting Minutes of the Dixon Public Library Board of Trustees

Monday May 12 2014

In Attendance Director Lynn Roe Glen Hughes Carol Linkowski David Badger Terry Dunphy
Roberta Vanderlin Carol Chandler Sharon Thompson

Absent With Notice Kim Pettygrove and Tracey Lawton

Meeting Location Dixon Public Library Lower Level Meeting Room

President Glen Hughes called the meeting to order at 536 pm ChildrensLibrarian Beth McCormick was
present No other citizens were present and there were no citizens comments Director Lynn Roe
introduced Sharon Thompson to the Board She was voted to the Dixon Public Library Board of Trustees
on May 5 2014 taking the place of Robert Thomas Lynn also stated that Kim Pettygrove will be leaving
the Board when his term ends in June of this year she believes the City may have his replacement in
mind After we welcomed Sharon to the Board Carol Linkowski made a motion to approve the minutes of
the April 14 2014 Library Board Meeting as presented Terry Dunphy seconded the motion and the
motion passed

PresidentsReport There was no PresidentsReport

DirectorsReport Director Lynn Roe informed the Board that Glen Hughes and she had a conference
call with Bob Fogarty of GRP on April 25 Mr Fogarty suggested a meeting with the Building Committee
and City Administrator David Nord and a meeting has been scheduled for May 20 at 1030 am All
other Board Members were invited to attend as well Lynn will be on vacation from May 23 through
June 7 and she asked if any Board Members would be willing to be on call as a contact in case of an
emergency Glen Hughes will be on call with Roberta Vanderlin as a backup if he is unavailable Lynn
also mentioned that the next Board Meeting will be at Dixon City Hall as the librarys lower level meeting
room will be in use on that date

TreasurersReport Terry Dunphy summarized the TreasurersReport for the Board The beginning
balance in the Checking Account as of April 11 2014 was 3458952 and the ending balance as of May
9 2014 is3428884 The total for trust funds in CDs is 48889772 With the Midland States Bank
checking account total the Trust Funds Total is 52318656 Terry informed us that there is 1 CD to be
rolled over in June of this year and she will be contacting the banks for their current interest rates shortly
David Badger made a motion to approve the April 2014 TreasurersReport and Trust Fund Memorials
Donations Special Funds Report as presented Carol Chandler seconded the motion and the motion
was approved After the Board reviewed the Invoices Expenditures Report Carol Linkowski made a
motion to approve the April 2014 Invoices Expenditures Report as presented Roberta Vanderlin
seconded the motion and the motion passed

Committee Reports

Finance and Budget No report

Building and Grounds No report A meeting is scheduled in May

Personnel and Salaries No report

Bylaws Policies and Procedures No report

Technology Technology Resources No report

Financial Planning Ad Hoc Committee No report

1



Unfinished Business

Building Grounds Lynn stated that she had this on the agenda in case the Board had anything
to discuss before the upcoming meeting with GRP and David Nord Carol Chandler asked Lynn to
look into having the dead trees on the north end of the building removed in the near future The
City Council has not made a decision about landscaping for that area yet

Library Director Evaluation The Personnel and Salaries Committee was going to meet to
discuss this topic but then Bob Thomas was replaced on the Board so this meeting will take place
at a future date

New Business

Library Lending Policy Lynn Roe stated that there has been a very positive response from
patrons to the new library hours and staff scheduling with the new hours is going well At the
request of the Board ChildrensLibrarian Beth McCormick summarized her point of view on Library
fines for the Board and in particular for Sharon Thompson Sharon was not present at Aprils
Board Meeting to hear Beth speak about her reasons for asking the Board to change our recently
implemented lending procedures which raise the fine for overdue books to015itemday Lynn
gave the Board Members a handout summarizing the present lending procedures as well as her
thoughts in writing of the pros and cons for charging a 015 fine for overdue childrensmaterials
After discussion by the Board David Badger made a motion to keep the lending fine at
015itemday but give a 2 week grace period for childrensbooks Roberta Vanderlin seconded
the motion After further discussion Mr Badger withdrew his motion The Board decided that we
would not make a policy change at this time Instead the Board recommended that Director Lynn
Roe at her discretion may implement a grace period for childrens items that are overdue this
recommendation is considered by the Board to be a procedural rather than a policy change

Tax Exemption Identification Numbers for Library Trust Funds Mr Phil Lenzini the library
consultant who has advised Lynn on library policies and procedures has recommended to her that
the Library get its own Federal Tax Exemption ID Number for reporting interest earned by our Trust
Funds The Board agreed that this was a good suggestion David Badger made a motion that
Director Lynn Roe ask Mr Phil Lenzini to prepare an application for a Federal Tax Exemption
Identification Number for the purpose of reporting the interest earned by the LibrarysTrust Funds
Carol Linkowski seconded the motion and the motion was approved

Review and Approval of the 201314 IPLAR Illinois Public Library Annual Report Lynn
prepared the 201314 IPLAR and reviewed it for the Board She will email the Board a copy of the
Report within the next few days After Lynn summed up the Report Sharon Thompson made a
motion to accept the IPLAR Roberta Vanderlin seconded the motion and the motion was
approved President Glen Hughes and Secretary Roberta Vanderlin signed the report which will
be submitted by Director Lynn Roe to the Illinois State Library

President Glen Hughes stated that a nominating committee must be formed to nominate Board Members
for Library Board officers Glen asked Carol Linkowski and David Badger to be on the nominating
committee and they accepted David Badger informed the Board that he will be unable to attend the
June Board Meeting

Carol Linkowski made a motion to adjourn the meeting Roberta Vanderlin seconded the motion and the
motion was approved The meeting was adjourned at 700 pm

Our next meeting is on Monday June 9 2014 at 530 pm We will be meeting at the Dixon City Council
Chambers due to Summer Reading Program activities at the Librarys meeting room

Respectfully submitted

Roberta Vanderlin Secretary

2



Minutes from Special Meeting May 20th 2014

Attendance David Nord Paula Meyer Lynn Roe David Badger Terry Dunphy Glen Hughes
Laura Weber Bob Fogarty

The meeting began at 1035 am with introductions from those in attendance The group
represented the City of Dixon Dixon Public Library and GRP Performance Contractors

The group met to discuss capital projects needed at the Dixon Public Library building
located at 221 S Hennepin Avenue GRP had previously evaluated the building and
compiled a needs assessment for the library

The group discussed various ways of funding these projects The library would like to
begin work on the roof and boilers this year and have set a goal of ninety days from this
date to have a plan in place to proceed with the recommendations from GRP

The meeting was adjourned at 1155 pm

Minutes prepared and submitted by

Lynn A Roe
Library Director



DIXON PUBLIC LIBRARY BOARD of TRUSTEES

TreasurersReport for June 9 2014 Meeting

Beginning Balance in Checking Acct May 9 2014 3428884

Expenditures May 12 2014

Deduct from memorial fund Check payable to Amount

Books Materials

various funds below Dixon Public Library 2260

Dixon Public Library already pd Ingram invoices from regular budget

Warner Fund 1 book 2260

reimburse regular budget line Adult Materials acct 154105431 Adult Library MtIs

Books Materials

Murphy Foundation Media Midwest Tape 4397

total of 5 items 2 dvds 3 cdsaudiobooks

total amount includes credit memo

various funds below Dixon Public Library 38380

Dixon Public Library already pd from regular budget

from Mastercard credit card bill monthly closing date of 43014

Youth Programs Projects

from Lois Sheffield Memorial 5466

Amazon 11215 plus credit from Lakeshore 5749 legos toy animal figures

from Summer Reading Program 32914

Amazon4432231614941297 Oriental Trading4600119005275

Paypal ILA 1600

Expenditure from checking account CNA Surety 27500

library board treasurerssurety bond effective 7 12014

Total Expenditures 72537

continued



TreasurersReport for June 9 2014 meeting continued

Deposits May 21 2014 100000

June 5 2014 75833

June 6 2014 15702

TOTAL 191535

Apply to Fund Source Amount

Books Materials

Kullerstrand online book sales Kullerstrand Diane 75833

May sales

Books Materials

Serendipity Wilbur Ransom 100000

donation

checking account Community State Bank 15702

interest earned quarterly on CD pd by check 6514

Total Deposits 191535

Interest pd to checking account May 31 2014 no bank statement received yet

TOTAL interest

Ending Balance in Checking Acct June 6 2014 3547882



TRUST FUNDS 662014

CD INFO checking account balance

MATURITY CURRENT BANK OPENING OPENING CURRENT

DATE RATE CONTACT DATE BALANCE BALANCE

Community State Bank

6232014 194 2848500 6232011 9944605 10443052

Sterling Federal Bank
6262015 0800 2883327 7262013 6591993 6616073

Sterling Federal Bank
8132015 1045 2883327 952012 5373348 5447626

Community State Bank

932015 0745 2848500 932013 8354076 8354076

Sterling Federal Bank
5252016 1045 2883327 6252013 2245002 2257243

First National Bank

4192017 149 in Amboy 2880700 4192012 5206930 5206930
Sauk Valley Bank

342019 1605 632 4490 342014 10564772 10564772
TOTAL BALANCE

OF CDS 48889772

Midland States Bank

285 5155

NA APY001 checking account NA NA 3547882

Dixon Public Library TRUST FUND I 52437654



498
DIXON TOURISM BOARD MINUTES JUNE 9 2014
Location Distinctive Gardens

Present Pres Vicky Turner Laura Santos Lyn Milano Ann Lewis Diane
Bausman Marilyn Trulock Jeanne Kuhn
Absent Karen Setchell Colleen Brechon Joe Rudolphi Mayor Jim Burke

Meeting was called to order at 540 by Pres Turner The agenda and June
minutes were approved LynAnn

TreasurersReport Balance of1285454 The Welcome Center
deposited 26632
BWVCB REPORT Diane B
She shared ideas from the Social Media Audit she received

Deadline for Trail of Terror listings is due by June 23
There is an increase in number of enewsletter being sent out to 1093
interested

Print ads are in many Chicago and Suburban guides There were 11 group
tour packets of information sent

UNFINISHED BUSINESS

More Lincoln Brochures need to be ordered for BWVCB and Welcome
Center

Coloring Book Still waiting for Mayors introductory letter

Reagan Statue Update Still working on website and redoing the brochure

Military Band Aug 8 which coordiantes with Reagan Trail Days Location
to be determined

Cabelas Jeannie Held this past weekend We ended up having 1200
collected from cosponsors in a brochureposter goal was1000 There
were 57 teams up from 54 last year Nearly 12000 in prizes was
awarded Vendors on the grounds were Mama Ciminos and Hey Ice
Cream Winners were from Rock Falls Lots of people gathered to watch
the weigh ins at Page Park The Fishing Rodeo had 30 participants up
from 3 last year Jeanne will try to get started on finding some corporate
sponsors for next year



Bloomin on the Rock The Garden Club has requested help with watching
the houses Jeanne and Vicky have volunteered to help Ticket selling
needs to pick up

Hot Rod Event June 12 Approximately3000 hot rods are expected to
pass through town Plans are to make signs advertising free ice cream
cones We are paying for 1000 cones sponsored by Hey Ice Cream in
Page Park Ginkgo Tree will sell sack lunches while Mama Ciminos will
also sell lunch in the park

Fire Compliance Letter Pattie Hummel has refused to do the
recommended additions to a battery powered Exit sign and address
numbers on the front of the building Vicky suggested that the Fire Dept
send the letter directly to Pattie instead of us

Finance Quickbooks have been updated by Joe Yea City Hall is happy

NEW BUSINESS The Next Picture Show had previously asked for a
donation to the mural on the side of the building We voted to donate 300
to that mural Ann movedJeannie 2nd

Annual Dinner for BWVCB is Aug 21 We are hosting Party in the Petunia
City at the Timber Creek Golf Club We will need to meet again to ask
businesses for donations for raffle prizes and baskets Jeanne will

contact local greenhouses for petunias for the table decorations She will
also check into other tourism groups in towns to help sponsor appetizers
560 So far the Museum Alliance is on board with help from John Deere
Home

Adjournment at 630

Next meeting is July 14 at Moonlight Bay on the Kuhns pontoon boat

Respectfully submitted
Jeanne Kuhn Secretary



4r
DIXON MUNICIPAL AIRPORT DIXON ILLINOIS

AIRPORT BOARD MEETING
April 12 2014 800 AM at Dixon Walgreen Field

Board Members

Present 1 Brian Brown 2 Dave Flenner 3 Al Hill 4 Dick Meggers
Absent 5 Don Lewis

Quorum present Yes

Others Present Airport Manager Larry Haley

Proceedings The meeting was called to order at 802 AM CDT by Dave Flenner

SecretarysReport Dave Flenner

Minutes from April 12 2014

MOTION by Al Hill to approve minutes for April 12 2014 as recorded by Dave
Seconded by Brian Brown APPROVED

Treasurers Report Brian Brown

Brian sent byemail a copy of Airport Budget ending March 31 2014 for 92 of Fiscal Year
Year to Date expenditures were 12163315of our 13459500Budget
Most current updates to expenditures is 128953

MOTION by Al Hill to approve TreasurersReport as presented by Brian
Seconded by Dick Meggers APPROVED

Airport Manager and Maintenance Report Larry Haley
FUEL Credit Card Reader Unable to process credit card at this time at the self serve terminal Our
maintenance agreement is for weekdays so Larry will get with them on Monday to trouble shot Clay is able
to process credit cards on his Point of Sale machine

5 Year Equipment Plan City has requested a 5 year plan for equipment purchases
HANGERS No change
Vacancies B2 B3 B4 E5 and F10

1 Fire Department is using E5 to store a Safety trailer
2 Street Department is using F10 to store a Bucket Truck Wood Chipper and some additional supplies

Engineering and Projects Reports Al Hill
Engineer Firm selection Vote in Old Business

Land AppraisalsSale of Church property Al believes that has closed but will look into its progress The
next step will be to work with DOT to get the grant money for this purchase reimbursed to the city

Public Relations Brian Brown

Sauk Valley Sun newspaper is working up an article about airport in the future
FAA Ramp Check Brian reports that while doing some preflight instruction to a student on a Sunday a
FAA inspector came into the terminal Resulting in the inspector doing a Ramp check to the students
airplane All was fine with proper papers

Old Business

Engineer Firm selection We have heard from three firms 1 Burns McDonnell 2 Crawford Murphy
Tilly Inc and 3 Chamlin Associates Inc for this selection It is time to select one of the three for the
next 5years

MOTION by Al Hill to retain Crawford Murphy Tilly Inc for 5years as our engineering firm
Seconded by Dick Meggers APPROVED

Courtesy Car Use Agreement Don Don is away will discuss at next meeting
NOTAMS Brian no updates on adding Brian as an Alternate
Memorial Plaque Al spoke with Ray Neisewandersson about us making a plaque Ray believes his father
joined the Airport board in 1979 Al expects to receive a photo from Rays secretary at Raynor
Manufacturing This photo will be used on the plaque

Pagel



DIXON MUNICIPAL AIRPORT DIXON ILLINOIS
AIRPORT BOARD MEETING

April 12 2014 800 AM at Dixon Walgreen Field

Mower Snow Blower Larry had a specification sheet prepared so we can request bids for the tractor and
mower There is a question about the size of Loader bucket of 61 or 73 and snow blower size of 64 or
76 The city is to transfer the current John Deere model 3120 to be used at Oakwood Cemetery There will
not be a tradein since the city will be keeping our old tractormower The specification sheet is based on
research by Larry looking at a John Deere Tractor model 3046R and a Frontier Snow Blower It is estimated
that the cost for these units is about 52318 and the used value of our Model 3120 had it been traded in

about 23000 The specifications call for a Tractor with Minimum of 45 engine hours power 34 PTO HP
Four wheel Drive Hydrostatic transmission Enclosed Cab with Air Conditioner Heater 72 middeck

mower Loader with quick change attachment and 61 bucket plus a 64 loader mount Snow Blower
compatible with loader

MOTION by Brian Brown subject to City approval submit for Bids this Specification Sheet to include Tractor
with 61 Loader and 64 Snow Blower as stated on specification sheet
Seconded by Dick Meggers Roll call Vote 4 YES 0 NO 1 absent APPROVED

New Business

New Board Member WELCOME to Richard Meggers to the Airport Board approved on March 3 2014
SNOW BLOWER used equipment Dave asked Larry about old snow blower stored in hangers
Discussion about Blower decided we do not have a suitable tractor for it to work on It is a front mount

Blower with a drive shaft to the rear PTO drive requiring something like a PTO of 90 HP Also needed is
Four Wheel drive to control the unit With two wheel drive the blower does not permit the tractor to turn
making it not usable

MOTION by Al Hill to sell existing used Snow Blower for Larger Tractor subject to City approval
Seconded by Brian Brown APPROVED

Closing Comments Dave asked members to check the accuracy of our Board Member contact list

MOTION to adjourn at 931 AM by Brian Brown second by Al Hill APPROVED

Next meeting Saturday at 800 AM Local time June 14 2014
Future scheduled dates on August 9 October 4 and December 13 2014
Minutes submitted by Secretary David Flenner

Page 2



Illinois Department Local Public Agency
of Transportation Formal Contract

PROPOSAL SUBMITTED BY

Universal Asphalt Excavating Inc
ContractorsName

18 Gunia Drive 1636
Street PO Box

LaSalle IL 61301
City State Zip Code

STATE OF ILLINOIS
COUNTY LEE

CITY OF DIXON

Name of City Village Town or Road District

FOR THE IMPROVEMENT OF

STREET NAME OR ROUTE VARIOUS HMA STREETS
SECTION NO 140000001 GM

TYPES OF FUNDS MFT and Local Funds

SPECIFICATIONS required PLANS required CONTRACT BOND when required

For Municipal Projects Department of Transportation
SubmittedApprovedPassed Concurrence in approval of award

Mayor President of Board of Trustees El Municipal Official Regional Engineer

Date Date

For County and Road District Projects
SubmittedApproved

Highway Commissioner

Date

SubmittedApproved

County EngineerSuperintendent of Highways

Date

Printed682014 Page 1 of 2 BLR 12320 Rev 010914



County LEE

Local Public Agency CITY OF DIXON

Section Number 140000001 GM

Route VARIOUS HMA STREETS

1 THIS AGREEMENT made and concluded the day of
Month and Year

between the CITY of DIXON

acting by and through its CITY COUNCIL known as the party of the first part and
Universal Asphalt Excavating Inc histheir executors administrators successors or assigns
known as the party of the second part

2 Witnesseth That for and in consideration of the payments and agreements mentioned in the Proposal hereto attached to
be made and performed by the party of the first part and according to the terms expressed in the Bond referring to these
presents the party of the second part agrees with said party of the first part at his their own proper cost and expense to do
all the work furnish all materials and all labor necessary to complete the work in accordance with the plans and
specifications hereinafter described and in full compliance with all of the terms of this agreement and the requirements of
the Engineer under it

3 And it is also understood and agreed that the LPA Formal Contract Proposal Special Provisions Affidavit of Illinois
Business Office Apprenticeship or Training Program Certification and Contract Bond hereto attached and the Plans for
Section 140000001 GM in Dixon 2014 HMA General Maintenance Project
approved by the Illinois Department of Transportation on are essential documents of this

Date

contract and are a part hereof

4 IN WITNESS WHEREOF The said parties have executed these presents on the date above mentioned
Attest The Mayor of Dixon

Clerk By
Party of the First Part

Seal

If a Corporation

Corporate Name

By
President Party of the Second Part

If a CoPartnership

Attest

Secretary

Partners doing Business under the firm name of

Party of the Second Part

If an individual

Party of the Second Part

Printed682014 Page 2 of 2 BLR 12320 Rev 010914



Illinois Department
of Transportation Contract Bond

Route VARIOUS HMA STREETS

County LEE

Local Agency CITY OF DIXON

Section 140000001 GM

We

aan Individual Copartnership Corporation organized under the laws of the State of

as PRINCIPAL and

as SURETY

are held and firmly bound unto the above Local Agency hereafter referred to as LA in the penal sum of

Dollars lawful money of the
United States well and truly to be paid unto said LA for the payment of which we bind ourselves our heirs executors
administrators successors jointly to pay to the LA this sum under the conditions of this instrument

WHEREAS THE CONDITION OF THE FOREGOING OBLIGATION IS SUCH that the said Principal has entered into a
written contract with the LA acting through its awarding authority for the construction of work on the above section which
contract is hereby referred to and made a part hereof as if written herein at length and whereby the said Principal has
promised and agreed to perform said work in accordance with the terms of said contract and has promised to pay all sums of
money due for any labor materials apparatus fixtures or machinery furnished to such Principal for the purpose of performing
such work and has further agreed to pay all direct and indirect damages to any person firm company or corporation suffered
or sustained on account of the performance of such work during the time thereof and until such work is completed and
accepted and has further agreed that this bond shall inure to the benefit of any person firm company or corporation to whom
any money may be due from the Principal subcontractor or otherwise for any such labor materials apparatus fixtures or
machinery so furnished and that suit may be maintained on such bond by any such person firm company or corporation for
the recovery of any such money

NOW THEREFORE if the said Principal shall well and truly perform said work in accordance with the terms of said contract
and shall pay all sums of money due or to become due for any labor materials apparatus fixtures or machinery furnished to
him for the purpose of constructing such work and shall commence and complete the work within the time prescribed in said
contract and shall pay and discharge all damages direct and indirect that may be suffered or sustained on account of such
work during the time of the performance thereof and until the said work shall have been accepted and shall hold the LA and
its awarding authority harmless on account of any such damages and shall in all respects fully and faithfully comply with all
the provisions conditions and requirements of said contract then this obligation to be void otherwise to remain in full force
and effect

Page 1 of 2 IL 4940372 BLR 12321 Rev 705Printed on68201451042 PM



IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF the said PRINCIPAL and the said SURETY have caused this instrument to be
signed by their respective officers this day of AD

PRINCIPAL

Company Name Company Name

By B
Signature Title Signature Title

Attest Attest
Signature Title Signature Title

If PRINCIPAL is a joint venture of two or more contractors the company names and authorized signature of each contractor must be
affixed

STATE OF ILLINOIS

COUNTY OF

a Notary Public in and for said county do hereby certify that

Insert names of individuals signing on behalf or PRINCIPAL

who are each personally known to me to be the same persons whose names are subscribed to the foregoing instrument on behalf
of PRINCIPAL appeared before me this day in person and acknowledged respectively that they signed and delivered said
instrument as their free and voluntary act for the uses and purposes therein set forth
Given under my hand and notarial seal this day of AD

My commission expires
Notary Public SEAL

SURETY

By
Name of Surety Signature of AttorneyinFact

STATE OF ILLINOIS
SEAL

COUNTY OF

a Notary Public in and for said county do hereby certify that

Insert names of individuals signing on behalf or SURETY

who are each personally known to me to be the same persons whose names are subscribed to the foregoing instrument on behalf
of SURETY appeared before me this day in person and acknowledged respectively that they signed and delivered said
instrument as their free and voluntary act for the uses and purposes therein set forth
Given under my hand and notarial seal this day of AD

My commission expires
Notary Public SEAL

Approved this day of AD

Attest

Awarding Authority

Clerk

ChairmanMayorPresident

Page 2 of 2 IL 4940372 BLR 12321 Rev 705Printed on68201451042 PM



RETURN WITH BID

County LEE

NOTICE TO BIDDERS Local Public Agency CITY OF DIXON

Section Number 140000001 GM

Route VARIOUS HMA STREETS
Sealed proposals for the improvement described below will be received at the office of DIXON CITY HALL

121 W 2nd Street Dixon IL 61021 until 1030 AM on June 2 2014Address
Time Date

Sealed proposals will be opened and read publicly at the office of DIXON CITY HALL
121 W 2nd Street Dixon IL 61021 at 1030 AM on June 2 2014Address

Time Date

DESCRIPTION OF WORK
Name 2014 General Maintenance Project HMA Proposal Length 622200 feet 118 milesLocation Various Streets throughout the City of Dixon
Proposed Improvement Bituminous Surface Removal HotMix Aspalt Surface Related Construction Items

1 Plans and proposal forms will be available in the office of Online atwwwwilletthofmanncom see attached
Willett Hofmann Associates Inc 809 East 2nd Street Dixon IL 61021

Address

2 Prequalification

If checked the 2 low bidders must file within 24 hours after the letting an Affidavit of Availability Form BC 57 in
duplicate showing all uncompleted contracts awarded to them and all low bids pending award for Federal State CountyMunicipal and private work One original shall be filed with the Awarding Authority and one original with the IDOT DistrictOffice

3 The Awarding Authority reserves the right to waive technicalities and to reject any or all proposals as provided in BLRS
Special Provision for Bidding Requirements and Conditions for Contract Proposals

4 The following BLR Forms shall be returned by the bidder to the Awarding Authority
a BLR 12200 Local Public Agency Formal Contract Proposal
b BLR 12200a Schedule of Prices
c BLR 12230 Proposal Bid Bond if applicable
d

BLR 12325 Apprenticeship or Training Program Certification do not use for federally funded projectse BLR 12326 Affidavit of Illinois Business Office
5

The quantities appearing in the bid schedule are approximate and are prepared for the comparison of bids Payment to
the Contractor will be made only for the actual quantities of work performed and accepted or materials furnished
according to the contract The scheduled quantities of work to be done and materials to be furnished may be increaseddecreased or omitted as hereinafter provided

6 Submission of a bid shall be conclusive assurance and warranty the bidder has examined the plans and understands all
requirements for the performance of work The bidder will be responsible for all errors in the proposal resulting from
failure or neglect to conduct an in depth examination The Awarding Authority will in no case be responsible for any
costs expenses losses or changes in anticipated profits resulting from such failure or neglect of the bidder

7 The bidder shall take no advantage of any error or omission in the proposal and advertised contract
8 If a special envelope is supplied by the Awarding Authority each proposal should be submitted in that envelope furnished

by the Awarding Agency and the blank spaces on the envelope shall be filled in correctly to clearly indicate its contents
When an envelope other than the special one furnished by the Awarding Authority is used it shall be marked to clearly
indicate its contents When sent by mail the sealed proposal shall be addressed to the Awarding Authority at the address
and in care of the official in whose office the bids are to be received All proposals shall be filed prior to the time and at
the place specified in the Notice to Bidders Proposals received after the time specified will be returned to the bidderunopened

9 Permission will be given to a bidder to withdraw a proposal if the bidder makes the request in writing or in person beforethe time for opening proposals

Printed562014
Page 2 of 6

BLR 12200 010814



RETURN WITH BID

County LEE

PROPOSAL Local Public Agency CITY OF DIXON

Section Number 140000001 GM

Route VARIOUS HMA STREETS
1 Proposal of JLI tv Lov vrk t GI1Esc

for the improvement of the above section by the construction of Bituminous Surface Removal HotMix Aspalt Surface
related construction items

a total distance of 622200 feet of which a distance of 622200 feet 1180 miles are to be improved
2 The plans for the proposed work are those prepared by Willett Hofmann Associates Inc

and approved by the Department of Transportation on

3 The specifications referred to herein are those prepared by the Department of Transportation and designated as
Standard Specifications for Road and Bridge Construction and the Supplemental Specifications and Recurring SpecialProvisions thereto adopted and in effect on the date of invitation for bids

4 The undersigned agrees to accept as part of the contract the applicable Special Provisions indicated on the Check
Sheet for Recurring Special Provisions contained in this proposal

5 The undersigned agrees to complete the work within working days or by 08292014
unless additional time is granted in accordance with the specifications

6 A proposal guaranty in the proper amount as specified in BLRS Special Provision for Bidding Requirements and
Conditions for Contract Proposals will be required Bid Bonds will be allowed as a proposal guaranty Accompanying this
proposal is either a bid bond if allowed on Department form BLR 12230 or a proposal guaranty check complying with thespecifications made payable to

City Treasurer of Dixon

The amount of the check is 5 ofthe amount bid

7 In the event that one proposal guaranty check is intended to cover two or more proposals the amount must be equal to
the sum of the proposal guaranties which would be required for each individual proposal If the proposal guaranty checkis placed in another proposal it will be found in the proposal for Section Number

8 The successful bidder at the time of execution of the contract will be required to deposit a contract bond for the full
amount of the award When a contract bond is not required the proposal guaranty check will be held in lieu thereof If this
proposal is accepted and the undersigned fails to execute a contract and contract bond as required it is hereby agreedthat the Bid Bond or check shall be forfeited to the Awarding Authority

9 Each pay item should have a unit price and a total price If no total price is shown or if there is a discrepancy between the
product of the unit price multiplied by the quantity the unit price shall govern If a unit price is omitted the total price willbe divided by the quantity in order to establish a unit price

10 A bid will be declared unacceptable if neither a unit price nor a total price is shown
11 The undersigned submits herewith the schedule of prices on BLR 12200a covering the work to be performed under thiscontract

12 The undersigned further agrees that if awarded the contract for the sections contained in the combinations on
BLR 12200a the work shall be in accordance with the requirements of each individual proposal for the multiple bidspecified in the Schedule for Multiple Bids below

Printed562014
Page 3 of 6

BLR 12200 010814



RETURN WITH BID

ITIllinois Department
of Transportation SCHEDULE OF PRICES

County LEE

Local Public Agency CITY OF DIXON
Section 140000001GM

Route VARIOUS HMA STREETS
Schedule for Multiple Bids

Combination Letter Sections Included in Combinations Total

Schedule for Single Bid

For complete information covering these items see plans and specifications
Bidders Proposal for making Entire Improvements

Item
Items Unit Quantity Unit Price TotalNo

1 REMOVAL AND DISPOSAL OF CU YD 200 10f A100 00UNSUITABLE MATERIAL

2 AGGREGATE SUBGRADE TON 340 11 On 511 O 0UIMPROVEMENT

3 AGGREGATE BASE COURSE TON 100 11 no 1r0 00B

4 PREPARATION OF BASE SQ YD 8965 1 00 51 qt ri oo
5 BITUMINOUS MATERIALS GALLON 5180 0 01 51 Et

PRIME COAT

6 AGGREGATE PRIME COAT TON 37 0C 051
7 LEVELING BINDER MACHINE TON 747 l5 00 5t tal9 On

METHOD N50 1

8 HOTMIX ASPHALT BINDER TON 853 1500 Q ag15 00
COURSE IL190 N50 1

9 HOTMIX ASPHALT SURFACE TON 2001 15 no G 0160DCOURSE MIX C N50 1

10 MANHOLES TO BE ADJUSTED EACH 39 1Q 00 00 016 Ot
Printed552014

Page 51 BLR 12200a 010814



RETURN WITH BID

BiddersProposal for making Entire Improvements

Item
Items Unit Quantity Unit Price TotalNo

11 VALVE BOXES TO BE EACH 13 1 1 t 6
ADJUSTED

12 SURFACE REMOVAL SQ YD 24902 d 51 59 a1 Lot
VARIABLE DEPTH SPECIAL i

13 TRAFFIC CONTROL AND L SUM 1 4 ton 44 10
PROTECTION SPECIAL

I
lD

Printed552014 Page 52 BLR 12200a010814



RETURN WITH BID

Bidders Proposal for making Entire Improvements

Item
Items Unit Quantity Unit Price TotalNo

VVIVi

Printed552014 Page 53 BLR 12200a 010814



RETURN WITH BID

Bidders Proposal for making Entire Improvements 1
Item

Items Unit Quantity Unit PriceNo Total

Printed552014
Page 54 BLR 12200a 010814



RETURN WITH BID

County LEE

CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATIONS Local Public Agency CITY OF DIXON

Section Number 140000001 GM

Route VARIOUS HMA STREETS

The certifications hereinafter made by the bidder are each a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed shouldthe Department enter into the contract with the bidder
1

Debt Deliquency The bidder or contractor or subcontractor respectively certifies that it is not delinquent in the payment of
any tax administered by the Department of Revenue unless the individual or other entity is contesting in accordance with
the procedures established by the appropriate revenue Act its liability for the tax or the amount of tax Making a false
statement voids the contract and allows the Department to recover all amounts paid to the individual or entity under thecontract in a civil action

2 Bid Rigging or Bid Rotating The bidder or contractor or subcontractor respectively certifies that it is not barred from
contracting with the Department by reason of a violation of either 720 ILCS533E3 or 720 ILCS 533E4
A violation of Section 33E3 would be represented by a conviction of the crime of bid rigging which in addition to Class 3
felony sentencing provides that any person convicted of this offense or any similar offense of any state or the United States
which contains the same elements as this offense shall be barred for 5 years from the date of conviction from contracting
with any unit of State or local government No corporation shall be barred from contracting with any unit of State or local
government as a result of a conviction under this Section of any employee or agent of such corporation if the employee so
convicted is no longer employed by the corporation and 1 it has been finally adjudicated not guilty or 2 if it demonstrates
to the governmental entity with which it seeks to contract and that entity finds that the commission of the offense was neither
authorized requested commanded nor performed by a director officer or a high managerial agent in behalf of the
corporation

A violation of Section 33E4would be represented by a conviction of the crime of bid rotating which in addition to Class 2
felony sentencing provides that any person convicted of this offense or any similar offense of any state or the United States
which contains the same elements as this offense shall be permanently barred from contracting with any unit of State or
local government No corporation shall be barred from contracting with any unit of State or local government as a result of a
conviction under this Section of any employee or agent of such corporation if the employee so convicted is no longer
employed by the corporation and 1 it has been finally adjudicated not guilty or 2 if it demonstrates to the governmental
entity with which it seeks to contract and that entity finds that the commission of the offense was neither authorized
requested commanded nor performed by a director officer or a high managerial agent in behalf of the corporation

3 Bribery The bidder or contractor or subcontractor respectively certifies that it has not been convicted of bribery or
attempting to bribe an officer or employee of the State of Illinois or any unit of local government nor has the firm made an
admission of guilt of such conduct which is a matter of record nor has an official agent or employee of the firm committed
bribery or attempted bribery on behalf of the firm and pursuant to the direction or authorization of a responsible official of thefirm

4 Interim Suspension or Suspension The bidder or contractor or subcontractor respectively certifies that it is not currently
under a suspension as defined in Subpart 1 of Title 44 Subtitle A Chapter III Part 6 of the Illinois Administrative Code
Furthermore if suspended prior to completion of this work the contract or contracts executed for the completion of this workmay be cancelled

Printed4252014 Page 5 of 6 BLR 12200 010814



RETURN WITH BID

County LEE

SIGNATURES Local Public Agency CITY OF DIXON

Section Number 140000001GM

Route VARIOUS HMA STREETS
If an individual

Signature of Bidder

Business Address

If a partnership

Firm Name

Signed By

Business Address

fInset Names and Addressed of All Partners

If a corporation

Corporate Name Universal Asphalt Excavatin Inc

Signed By C
President

Business Addres 18 Gunia Drive 2 PO Box 1636

LaSalle IL 61301

President R Tomaseski

Insert Names of Officers Secretary R Tomaseski

Treasurer R Tomaseski

Attest

Secretary

Printed5302014
Page 6 of 6

BLR 12200 010814



Department
Apprenticeship or Trainingof Transport Program Certification

Route VARIOUS HMA STRFFTS
Return with Bid

County LEE

Local Agency CITY OF DIXON

Section 140000001 GM

All contractors are required to complete the following certification

For this contract proposal or for all groups in this deliver and install proposal

For the following deliver and install groups in this material proposal

Illinois Department of Transportation policy adopted in accordance with the provisions of the Illinois Highway Code
requires this contract to be awarded to the lowest responsive and responsible bidder The award decision is subject to
approval by the Department In addition to all other responsibility factors this contract or deliver and install proposal
requires all bidders and all bidders subcontractors to disclose participation in apprenticeship or training programs that are
1 approved by and registered with the United States Department of Labors Bureau of Apprenticeship and Training and
2 applicable to the work of the above indicated proposals or groups Therefore all bidders are required to complete thefollowing certification

Except as provided in paragraph IV below the undersigned bidder certifies that it is a participant either as an
individual or as part of a group program in an approved apprenticeship or training program applicable to each type
of work or craft that the bidder will perform with its own employees

II The undersigned bidder further certifies for work to be performed by subcontract that each of its subcontractors
submitted for approval either A is at the time of such bid participating in an approved applicable apprenticeship
or training program or B will prior to commencement of performance of work pursuant to this contract establish
participation in an approved apprenticeship or training program applicable to the work of the subcontract

III The undersigned bidder by inclusion in the list in the space below certifies the official name of each program
sponsor holding the Certificate of Registration for all of the types of work or crafts in which the bidder is a
participant and that will be performed with the bidders employees Types of work or craft that will be
subcontracted shall be included and listed as subcontract work The list shall also indicate any type of work or
craft job category for which there is no applicable apprenticeship or training program available

IL Laborers Contractors Joint Apprenticeship Training Program
Operating Engineers Local 150 Apprenticeship Program
Cement Masons Local 11 Apprenticeship Program

Printed5302014 Page 1 of 2
BLR 12325 Rev 407



IV Except for any work identified above any bidder or subcontractor that shall perform all or part of the work of the
contract or deliver and install proposal solely by individual owners partners or members and not by employees to
whom the payment of prevailing rates of wages would be required check the following box and identify the
owneroperator workforce and positions of ownership

The requirements of this certification and disclosure are a material part of the contract and the contractor shall require this
certification provision to be included in all approved subcontracts The bidder is responsible for making a complete report
and shall make certain that each type of work or craft job category that will be utilized on the project is accounted for and
listed The Department at any time before or after award may require the production of a copy of each applicable
Certificate of Registration issued by the United States Department of Labor evidencing such participation by the contractor
and any or all of its subcontractors In order to fulfill the participation requirement it shall not be necessary that any
applicable program sponsor be currently taking or that it will take applications for apprenticeship training or employment
during the performance of the work of this contract or deliver and install proposal

Bidder Universal Asphalt Excavating Inc By

ignature
Address 18 Gunia Dr 2 PO Box 1636 LaSalle IL 61301 Title President

Printed5302014 Page 2 of 2 BLR 12325 Rev 407



RETURN WITH BID

Illinois Department
of Transportation Affidavit of Illinois Business Office

County LEE
Local Public Agency DIXON

Section Number 140000001 GM
Route VARIOUS HMA STREETS

State of Illinois

ss

County of LaSalle

I Randy Tomaseski of LaSalle Illinois
Name of Affiant City of Affiant State of Affiant

being first duly sworn upon oath states as follows
1 That I am the President of Universal Asphatl Excavating Incofficer or position bidder

2 That I have personal knowledge of the facts herein stated
3 That if selected under this proposal Universal Asphalt Excavating Inc will maintain a

bidder

business office in the State of Illinois which will be located in LaSalle County Illinois

4 That this business office will serve as the primary place of employment for any persons employed in the
construction contemplated by this proposal

5 That this Affidavit is given as a requirement of state law as provided in Section 30228 of the IllinoisProcurement Code

Signature

Randy Tomaseski
Print Name of Affiant

This instrument was acknowledged before me on
nd

day of CitQ t noif

FFICIAL SEAL
MANDY TOMASESKI

NOTARY PUBLIC STATE OF ILLINOIS

AftMY
COMMISSION EXPIRES 10092016

Sign u ota ublic

Printed5302014
BLR 12326 010814



Illinois Department
of Transportation Affidavit of Availability

Bureau of Construction For the Letting of 622014
2300 South Dirksen ParkwayRoom 322
Springfield Illinois 62764 structions Complete this form by either typing or using black ink Authorization to Bid will not be issued

less both sides of this form are completed in detail Use additional forms as needed to list all work
Part 1 Work Under Contract

List below all work you have under contract as either a prime contractor or a subcontractor It is required to include all pending low bids not yet awardedor rejected In a joint venture list only that portion of the work which is the responsibility of your company The uncompleted dollar value is to be based uponthe most recent engineersor owners estimate and must include work subcontracted to others If no work is contracted show NONE
1 2 3 4 Awards Pending

Contract Number 140009500FP 14FP CVS Store 1401
Jlf r

Contract With
City of Streator City of Streator Wm RandolphP LP High School

Estimated Completion Date May 2014 June 2014 July 2014 July 2014
Total Contract Price

41224605 47142340 49000000 Accumulated15103700
TotalsUncompleted Dollar Value if Firm is

the Prime Contractor 814000 47142340
15103700 63060040

Uncompleted Dollar Value if Firm is
the Subcontractor 28530000 28530000

Total Value of All Work
91590040

Part II Awards Pending and Uncompleted Work to be done with your own forces

List below the uncompleted dollar value of work for each contract and awards pending to be completed with your own forces All worksubcontracted to others will be listed on the reverse of this form In a joint venture list only that portion of the work to be done by your
Accumulated

company If no work is contracted show NONE Totals

Earthwork
1615000

1615000
Portland Cement Concrete Paving

HMA Plant Mix

HMA Paving
11814500 8000000 1000000 20814500

Clean Seal CracksJoints

Aggregate Bases Surfaces
2360000

2360000
Highway RR and Waterway Structures

Drainage
5374000

5374000
Electrical

Cover and Seal Coats

Concrete Construction

Landscaping
814000 1534500

2348500
Fencing

Guardrail

Painting
293500

Signing
293500

Cold Milling Planning Rotomilling

Demolition

Pavement Markings Paint

Other Construction List
1208000

1208000

Totals
814000 24199500 8000000 1000000 34013500

Disclosure of this information is REQUIRED to accomplish the statutory purpose as outlined in the Illinois Procurement Code Failure to comply will result innon issuance of an Authorization To Bid This form has been approved by the State Forms Management Center
Printed5302014

Page 1 of 2 BC 57 Rev 081710



0 LLL80 n L5 08 Z o Z abed 1710Z089PaluUd

10E1911 elleSel
96060I0I S321tdX3 NOISSIWWO3 AIN

9E91 x08 Od z anua eun0 91 ssappy SIONI111 d0 31d1S onand 121d10N
INS3SdW01 ACINHW

H1 Y JWwN
out 6uleneox vg leydsy lesJanlun Aue woo

910Z60101 saJaxaU0SSIwwoo nW

gnd tie

all Joloana Jo Sao

118p189Jd nsasewol Apued aweN upeu6iSo adAj t710Z 3NrW Jo AeP aNZ sly

aw agoeq o UJOMS pue pagposgnS

saep uoaldwoo paewlsa 11V pue papafaj
Jo papienne apt ou splq nnol 6upued 11V 1J0nnoeuoogns 11y 6ulpnpu fJonn aenud pue ly0 4uno0 aes jaJapad iopau6sJapun
ay o soejuoo paaldwooun 11y o 6uelaJ uawaes oaJJoo pue anJ e s nepJe sy ey aieloap AgaJaq op worms Alnp 6uaq l

001E011711 0000S0Z 0V9Z16ZZ paaldwooun leloi

pelaldwooun
unowy

aoud peiluoogns

IoM io adA

Jooeiuoogns

peladwoou0
unowy

eopd loeiuoogng

IoM o edA

Jooeiuoogng

000 paaldwooun
unowy

0000859 eoud oeiuoogng

lenow IoM o edA

6ueooleaS INS JooeJuoogns

00009 O9E6ZZZ1 00 Paaldwoouy
unowy

00009 OS86ZZZL 09L0E eoJd loeJuoogns

esee
o o ed66y is 6uppnj aaJouo0 6ulpuu0 Mb 1

6uponi IN eignoa aaJouo0 uosJapuy Auedwo0 uuna JooeJuoogns

00LEO1b1 00008091 0637E1L0L 000 paaldwo
wunowy

001E01473 00008091 06171LO 1 09Z1 1L 1 eoud oeJuoogns

aanuoa 6upuu0 aaJouo0 ioM o adAi

aaJouo0 uos1epuy Auedwo0 uuna eleJouo0 uosJapuy JolaeJuoogns

6upuad spremy

slayo o pa4eJuoogns eney noA NJom ay He Is 1 Ped u paqJosep peiuoo pee Jod

saypO 0l paoeJuoogns IJoM 111 Ped



A

i5

CITY OF DIXON

ORDINANCE NO

AN ORDINANCE ESTABLISHING PREVAILING WAGES

FOR THE CITY OF DIXON LEE COUNTY ILLINOIS
EH ECTIVE JULY 1 2014

ADOPTED BY THE

CITY COUNCIL

OF THE

CITY OF DIXON

THIS DAY OF 2014

Published in pamphlet form by authority of the City Council of the City of

Dixon Lee County this day of 2014



ORDINANCE NO

ORDINANCE ESTABLISHING PREVAILING WAGES

WHEREAS the State of Illinois has enacted An Act regulating wages of

laborers mechanics and other workers employed in any public works by the State

County City or any public body or any political subdivision or by anyone under contract

for public works approved June 26 1941 codified as amended 820 ILCS 1301 et seq

1993 formerly I11 Rev Stat Ch 48 par 39s1 et seq and

WHEREAS the aforesaid Act requires that the City Council of the City of Dixon

investigate and ascertain the prevailing rate of wages as defined in said Act for laborers

mechanics and other workers in the locality of said Lee County employed in performing

construction of public works for said City of Dixon

NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED BY the Council of the City of Dixon

SECTION 1 To the extent and as required by An Act regulating wages of

laborers mechanics and other workers employed in any public works by State County

City or any public body or any political subdivision or by anyone under contract for

public works approved June 26 1941 as amended the general prevailing rate of wages

in this locality for laborers mechanics and other workers engaged in construction of

public works coming under the jurisdiction of the City of Dixon is hereby ascertained to

be the same as the prevailing rate of wages for construction work in the Lee County area

as determined by the Department of Labor of the State of Illinois as of June 2013 a copy

of that determination being attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference As

required by said Act any and all revisions of the prevailing rate of wages by the

Department of Labor of the State of Illinois shall supersede the DepartmentsJune

determination and apply to any and all public works construction undertaken by the City

of Dixon The definition of any terms appearing in this Ordinance which are also used in
aforesaid Act shall be the same as in said Act

SECTION 2 Nothing herein contained shall be construed to apply said general

prevailing rate of wages as herein ascertained to any work or employment except public
works construction of the City of Dixon to the extent required by the aforesaid Act



SECTION 3 The City of Dixon City Clerk shall publicly post or keep available

for inspection by any interested party in the main office of the City of Dixon this

determination or any revisions of such prevailing rate of wage A copy of this

determination or of the current revised determination of prevailing rate of wages then in

effect shall be attached to all contract specifications

SECTION 4 The City of Dixon City Clerk shall mail a copy of this

determination to any employer and to any association of employers and to any person or

association of employees who have filed their names and addresses requesting copies of

any determination stating the particular rates and the particular class of workers whose

wages will be affected by such rates

SECTION 5 The City of Dixon City Clerk shall promptly file a certified copy of

this Ordinance with both the Secretary of State Index Division and the Department of
Labor of the State of Illinois

SECTION 6 The City of Dixon City Clerk shall cause to be published in a

newspaper of general circulation within the area a copy of this Ordinance and such
publication shall constitute notice that the determination is effective and that this is the

determination of this public body

Passed by the Mayor and the City of Council of the City of Dixon this

day of 2014

James G Burke Mayor
ATTEST

Kathe A Swanson City Clerk



CC
1

BID FORM

1 i t o of P0 Jr49
Name Address

hereby submit a bid of for

Amount

mil
Gasoline Price Per Gal No Lead J Check here if Ethanol Based

Diesel Fuel 2 Per Gal 3
22

Total Per Gal

TOTAL PRICE PER GALLON WILL BE THE DETERMINATION FOR
SUCCESSFUL BIDDER

PER UNIT PER CASEDRUM

Reference Items

i3 o
MP Gear Lube SAE 8090140Gal or Drum55 Gal 2 es

HD Motor Oil SAF 10203040Gal or Drum55 Gal
15W40 Drum55 Gal 2c gf
Lithium Grease Case of 122 2

q6 316AntifreezeGal or Drum55 Gal

Hydraulic OilGal or Drum55 Gal 19 q
Diesel Fuel 1 Per Gal



s

LEASE

THIS LEASE made and entered into this 1st day of January 201 by and between

CITY OF DIXON ILLINOIS an Illinois municipal corporation as Lessor and DIXON

SISTER CITIES as Lessee

Lessor does hereby lease to the Lessee the basement level conference room located

within Dixon City Hall 121 W Second Street Dixon Illinois to be occupied only as the

Dixon Sister Cities Association Office and solely by the Lessee for and during the term of

one 1 year commencing the 1St day of January 2014 and concluding on the 31st day of

December 2014 upon the terms and conditions set forth herein and said Lessee hereby

accepts said Lease upon said terms and conditions as follows

1 Lessee shall pay to Lessor as rent for the leased premises for the term indicated

herein the sum of One dollar100

2 Lessee agrees to surrender the keys to the office and possession of the premises to

the Lessor in good condition as they are now upon the termination of the term above

created or the forfeiture of the Lease as hereinafter provided and further agrees that

during the occupancy of the premises to maintain and keep the same in as good

condition natural wear excepted

Damage by fire or other calamity rendering said premises completely untenable

shall terminate this Lease There shall be no abatement of said stipulated rent or

any part thereof so long as said Lessee shall retain possession of said premises or

any part thereof



3 Said Lessor agrees to enter or otherwise make use of the office only during

regular Dixon City Hall office hours The Lease is for access solely to the specified

basement room common areas and restrooms Use of any and all other areas

of City Hall are specifically not included as part of this lease agreement Any

insurance for contents within the leased office space is at the sole expense of the

Dixon Sister Cities organization

4 There shall be no alterations or remodeling of the premises without the prior written

consent of the Lessor which may be denied for any reason

5 The Lessee shall allow the Lessor reasonable access to the premises hereby lease

for the purpose of examining or exhibiting the same or making required repairs or

alteration on the premises which said Lessor deems reasonably necessary

The neglect of failure of the Lessee to keep the conditions or covenants under this

lease will constitute a forfeiture of all rights of the Lease and further occupancy of

the premises after such forfeiture by the Lessee shall be deemed held and taken

as a forcible detainer thereof by said Lessee and the Lessor may without notice re

enter and take possession thereof with or without legal process and dispose of the

Lessees items in accordance with state law

6 Lessor shall not be liable for damage to the property of the Lessee or others located

on the leased premises nor for loss or damage to any property of the Lessee or

others by theft or otherwise unless the damage was caused by the negligence of the

Lessor or the Lessors agent Lessor shall not be liable for the damage caused by



other Lessees or persons in the leased premises occupants or adjacent property

All property of Lessee kept or stored on the leased premises shall be kept or stored

at the risk of the Lessee only and Lessee shall hold Lessor harmless from any claims

arising out of damage to the same

7 Any notice given by either the Lessor or the Lessee under this Lease shall be

effective if said notice is communicated in writing or served personally and if given in

writing by certified mail return receipt requested at the following addresses

LESSOR CITY OF DIXON Attn City Administrator
121 W SECOND STREET

DIXON IL 61021

LESSEE Dixon Sister Cities Association

8 Lessee hereby irrevocably constitutes and appoints any attorney of any court of

record to appear for Lessee in said court at any time after default in any of the

covenants of this Lease and confess the judgment without process in favor of the

Lessor or its assigns for such amounts as may appear to be due thereon with cost and

reasonable attorneysfees as often as default shall be made hereon and to waive

and release all heirs and right of appeal from any such judgment or judgments and to

consent to immediate execution upon such judgment or judgments thereby ratifying and

confirming all the Lesseesattorney may do by virtue hereof

9 The foregoing covenants shall be binding upon the heirs executors administrators

and assigns of the parties hereto

10 Said Lessee shall not assign this Lease or any portion thereof nor sublet said



premises or any part thereof

11 This Lease may be terminated by either party upon thirty 30 days written notice

This Lease is renewable automatically on the same terms as stated herein on an annual

basis unless a notice of termination or modification is given or received by either party

hereto

IN WITNESS WHEREOF said parties have hereunto set their hands and seals this day

of 2014

LEASSOR

Dated

LESSEE

Dated



5

MUNICIPAL OFFICIALS TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS

James G Burke Mayor
David Blackburn Commissioner

FOR
Colleen Brechon Commissioner

Dennis Considine Commissioner

Jeff Kuhn Commissioner

Kathe Swanson City Clerk
David Nord City Administrator CITY OF DIXON

Dan Mahan
Wastewater Superintendent LEE COUNTY ILLINOIS

SEWERAGE IMPROVEMENTS

River Street Trunk Sewer Replacement
Crawford Avenue to Ravine Avenue

2014

OFILLN1

i i

5 i062063615

A
Z

rrrltON
OFEssOv

WILLETT HOFMANN Daniel B Loos E
A S S O C I A T E S I N C

Illinois Licensed Professional Engineer
ENGINEERING ARCHITECTURE LAND SURVEYING

License No 062063615
809 EAST 2ND STREET DIXON IL 610214367
T 8152843381 DESIGN FIRM 4184000918 Expires 11302015



DIVISION TS TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS

SPECIFICATIONS

The Standard Specifications for Water and Sewer Main Construction in Illinois 7th Edition 2014 shall
govern the construction of the proposed work Copies of these standard specifications can be obtained by
sending 2000 sales tax 400 shipping and handling each for nine or fewer copies to any of the
following associations A 10 quantity discount is offered for 10 or more copies

Illinois Society of Professional Engineers
1304 South Lowell

Springfield Illinois 62704

Illinois Municipal League
1220 South Seventh Street

Springfield Illinois 62703

The Associated General Contractors of Illinois

3220 Executive Park Drive

P O Box 2579 Mailing Address
Springfield Illinois 62708

All of the Standard Drawings included in the Standard Specifications for Water and Sewer Main
Construction in Illinois shall be considered as part of the Construction Drawings included in the Contract
Documents for this work

TS1



DIVISION TS TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS

TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS BASE BID

The following Technical Specifications supplement these Specifications Standard Specifications For
Water and Sewer Main Construction in Illinois and in case of conflict the Technical Specifications shall
take precedence and govern

SANITARY SEWER 24 DIA

SANITARY SEWER 21 DIA

SANITARY SEWER 12 DIA

These items shall be constructed in accordance with Sections 30 and 31 of the Standard Specifications for
Water and Sewer Main Construction in Illinois

CONTRACTOR shall take special precautions for meeting the sewer pipe and watermain separation
requirements as set forth in Sections 412O1B through 412O1F

CONTRACTOR shall be aware that dewatering may be required for sanitary sewer construction The
CONTRACTOR shall provide a hole along the sanitary sewer line to determine conditions at the bottom
of the trench If in the opinion of the ENGINEER dewatering is necessary the CONTRACTOR shall
provide the dewatering system to lower the water table below the trench excavation Cost for the

dewatering system shall be included in the unit price bid for DEWATERING Contractor shall provide
power for dewatering equipment

Acceptable pipe material for 24 diameter and 21 diameter sanitary sewer construction is as follows

Polyvinyl Chloride PVC Sewer Pipe SDR 26 cell classification 12454B ASTM F679 PS 115
with pushon type joints and elastomeric seals gaskets ASTM D3212 and F477 Type PSM

Acceptable pipe material for 12 diameter sanitary sewer construction is as follows

Polyvinyl Chloride PVC Sewer Pipe SDR 26 cell classification 12454B ASTM D3034 with
pushon type joints and elastomeric seals gaskets ASTM D3212 and F477 Type PSM

All sanitary sewer pipe shall be tested for infiltration or exfiltration and deflection in accordance with
Section 31113C The quantity of Infiltration or Exfiltration in the sanitary sewers shall not exceed 200
gallons per inch diameter per mile of pipe per 24 hours All sewers shall be tested If infiltration or
exfiltration exceeds the specified amount the contractor at his own expense shall be required to locate
and repair all defects of said sewer line in order to present for test a sewer within the allowable
infiltration and exfiltration limits

All sanitary sewer pipe will be tested for deflection in accordance with Section 31113D Deflection
testing will be required for the flexible thermoplastic pipe In order to insure that no deflection greater
than 5 has occurred a ninearm mandrel shall be hand pulled through the plastic sewer before final
construction approval The minimum mandrel diameter shall be 95 of the inside diameter of the

sanitary sewer

All testing costs shall be considered incidental to the unit price bid for the sanitary sewer construction

TS2



DIVISION TS TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS

This work will be paid for at the contract unit price bid per LINEAL FOOT for SANITARY SEWER 24
DIA SANITARY SEWER 21 DIA and SANITARY SEWER 12 DIA and shall include testing for
sanitary sewer acceptance

WATERMAIN QUALITY SANITARY SEWER 24 DIA
WATERMAIN QULITY SANITARY SEWER 20 DIA

These items shall be constructed in accordance with Sections 30 and 31 of the Standard Specifications for
Water and Sewer Main Construction in Illinois

CONTRACTOR shall take special precautions for meeting the sewer pipe and watermain separation
requirements as set forth in Sections 412O1B through 412O1F

CONTRACTOR shall be aware that dewatering may be required for sanitary sewer construction The
CONTRACTOR shall provide a hole along the sanitary sewer line to determine conditions at the bottom
of the trench If in the opinion of the ENGINEER dewatering is necessary the CONTRACTOR shall
provide the dewatering system to lower the water table below the trench excavation Cost for the

dewatering system shall be included in the unit price bid for the various sanitary sewer sizes Contractor
shall provide power for dewatering equipment

Acceptable pipe material for Watermain Quality Sanitary Sewer construction is as follows

Polyvinyl Chloride PVC AWWA C905 DR 41 100 psi cell classification 12454 ASTM D
1784 with pushon type joints and elastomeric seals gaskets ASTM D3139 and F477 Type
PSM

All sanitary sewer pipe shall be tested for infiltration or exfiltration and deflection in accordance with
Section 31113C The quantity of Infiltration or Exfiltration in the sanitary sewers shall not exceed 200
gallons per inch diameter per mile of pipe per 24 hours All sewers shall be tested If infiltration or
exfiltration exceeds the specified amount the contractor at his own expense shall be required to locate
and repair all defects of said sewer line in order to present for test a sewer within the allowable
infiltration and exfiltration limits

All sanitary sewer pipe will be tested for deflection in accordance with Section 31113D Deflection
testing will be required for the flexible thermoplastic pipe In order to insure that no deflection greater
than 5 has occurred a ninearm mandrel shall be hand pulled through the plastic sewer before final
construction approval The minimum mandrel diameter shall be 95 of the inside diameter of the

sanitary sewer

All testing costs shall be considered incidental to the unit price bid for the sanitary sewer construction

This work will be paid for at the contract unit price bid per LINEAL FOOT for SANITARY SEWER 24
DIA SANITARY SEWER 21 DIA and SANITARY SEWER 12 DIA and shall include testing for
sanitary sewer acceptance

TS3



DIVISION TS TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS

STORM SEWERS CLASS A TYPE 118

This item shall be constructed in accordance with Section 550 of the Standard Specifications for Road and
Bridge Construction dated January 1 2012 and Sections 50 and 51 of the Standard Specifications for
Water and Sewer Main Construction in Illinois

Acceptable pipe material for storm sewer is Reinforced Concrete Culvert Pipe w0ring gaskets

Basis of payment shall be at the contract unit price per FOOT for STORM SEWERS CLASS A TYPE 1
18 and shall include all connections required to make the storm sewer system operational

SANITARY SEWER SERVICE RECONNECTION

Contractor shall reconnect all sewer services encountered during construction of the new sanitary sewer
CONTRACTOR is to install a Fatboy Inserta Tee and reconnect the sewer service with compatible size
service pipe ie match existing service pipe size fittings couplings etc as necessary to ensure all joints
are watertight The Fatboy Inserta Tee with gasketed bell to accept SDR 26 service pipe service pipe
and fittings shall be PVC SDR 26 Contractor shall reconnect service as close to the new sanitary sewer as
possible

Payment for the sewer service reconnection shall be at the unit price bid per EACH for SANITARY
SEWER SERVICE RECONNECTION and shall include all labor equipment pipe fittings couplings
Granular Cradle and Initial Backfill Granular Select Backfill Temporary Surface over Trench Curb and
Gutter Replacement Sidewalk Replacement Seeding Class 2 and Bituminous Pavement Replacement 2

SANITARY MANHOLE 5 DIA TYPE A

OUTSIDE DROP SANITARY MANHOLE 5 DIA TYPE A

These items shall be constructed in accordance with Section 32 of the Standard Specifications for Water and
Sewer Main Construction in Illinois

Sanitary manholes shall be designed and constructed in accordance with ASTM C478 and shall be equipped
with an acceptable flexible watertight sleeve rubber boot at all points of pipe entry The cone section shall be
concentric for Type A manholes and a flat top slab for Type C manholes

Manhole exterior surface shall be waterproofed by applying ConCeal CS55 at a thickness recommended
by the manufacturer The manhole section joints shall have two 2 rows of preformed butyl rope and a
MacWrap external sealing band conforming to ASTM C877 or approved equal

Manhole chimney seals are not required Chimney seals will be installed during the street reconstruction
project

Frames for all Type A sanitary manholes shall be Neenah R1713 municipal castings East Jordan 1050 or
equal Casting lids shall be solid with concealed pick holes and shall be labeled Sanitary

Manhole shall be furnished with no steps

TS4



DIVISION TS TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS

The CONTRACTOR will be required to complete each manhole including fillets grouting opening frame
and cover etc prior to completion of the next run of sewer pipe to the next upstream manhole

CONTRACTOR will not be permitted to partially complete a number of manholes and then come back to
install fillets etc

All manholes shall be vacuum tested After waterproofing the contractor shall plug the incoming and
outgoing sewer lines and furnish and install vacuum testing equipment on manhole frame The

manholes shall be tested to a vacuum of 10 inches of Hg and shall not drop below 9 inches of Hg in the
following time periods

Manhole Diameter in Time sec

48 40

60 50

72 60

84 70

For manholes deeper than 20 feet test times shall be increased by 2 seconds per foot of additional
manhole depth If vacuum test exceeds the specified amount the contractor at his own expense shall be
required to locate and repair all defects of said manhole in order to present for test a manhole within the
allowable exfiltration limits

This work will be paid for at the contract unit price bid per EACH for SANITARY MANHOLE 5 DIA
TYPE A and OUTSIDE DROP SANITARY MANHOLE 5 DIA TYPE A and shall include the testing for
manhole acceptance

SANITARY SEWER 12 DIA ABANDONMENT

All sanitary sewer to be abandoned shall be done with grouting mudjacking as described below All
material that is used in the mudjacking process shall be DBL pulverized mixed and screened with 100
passing through a 4 sieve The following material at the listed proportions shall be required in the
mudjack material

60 Light sandy clay mixture with 100 of the material passing a 4 sieve
20 6040 limestone powder with 100 of the material passing a 50 sieve
20 Mason sand

The mudjack material shall then be mixed with a mason andor torpedo sand at a rate of 65 mudjack
mix to 45 sand Water will be used as required to aid in concrete raising stabilization andor void
filling

A bentonite vulclay powder may be added at the rate of 5 to 25 lbs per 6 cubic feet as an additional
pumping aid The bentonite vulclay powder shall have the following properties

pH 910

Moisture Content 9

Grind 200 Mesh 880

TS5



DIVISION TS TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS

The Mudjackers PO Box 807 Brookfield Wisconsin 530080807 can perform this type of work Their
phone number is 262 7841820 fax number is 262 7849332

This work shall be paid for at the contract unit price bid per LINEAL FOOT for SANITARY SEWER 12
DIA ABANDONMENT with no additional compensation allowed

MANHOLE ABANDONMENT 5 DIA

MANHOLE ABANDONMENT 4 DIA

CONTRACTOR shall furnish all labor materials and equipment required to abandon the existing
manholes as shown on the construction drawing after the new sanitary sewer is operational Both the
inlet and outlet lines shall be plugged shut with a non shrink grout The existing casting frame lid and
cone section s shall be removed and disposed of offsite as required so that the remaining manhole is a
minimum of 18 inches below grade The manholes shall be backfilled and compacted with sand or
granular select backfill material All disturbed areas shall be restored to original conditions in accordance with
the corresponding specifications for Curb and Gutter Replacement Sidewalk Replacement Seeding Class 2 and
Bituminous Pavement Replacement 2

The cost for all this work shall be included in the unit price bid per EACH for MANHOLE
ABANDONMENT 5 DIA and MANHOLE ABANDONMENT 4 DIA

FOUNDATION MATERIAL

This work shall be in accordance with Section 20502 of the Standard Specifications for Water and Sewer
Main Construction in Illinois The Foundation Material shall be 12 thick and shall be below the 4 thick
bedding Foundation Material is being required for the length of the trunk sewer

Acceptable material for Foundation Material is the same as that of Bedding and Haunching Granular
Cradle and Initial Backfill

Payment quantities for Foundation Material shall be for a theoretical trench width of the pipe diameter
plus 15 feet on either side of the pipe The Foundation Material depth shall be 12 inches

This work will be paid for at the contract unit price bid per CUBIC YARD for FOUNDATION
MATERIAL

BEDDING AND HAUNCHING GRANULAR CRADLE AND INITIAL BACKFILL

This work shall be in accordance with Section 20 of the Standard Specifications for Water and Sewer Main
Construction in Illinois All pipe shall be installed in accordance with ASTM D2321withat least a four 4
inch deep Granular Cradle and with Granular Backfill to one 1 foot above the top of the pipe
Acceptable materials for bedding and initial backfill are listed in Section 20 of the Standard Specifications
for Water and Sewer Main Construction in Illinois

Surplus excavated material not needed for Granular Cradle and Initial Backfill shall be promptly
removed from the site to locations provided by the CONTRACTOR

TS6



DIVISION TS TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS

The cost of this work shall be included in the unit price bid for the sanitary sewer storm sewer and
sanitary sewer service reconnection with no additional compensation being allowed

FINAL BACKFILL GRANULAR SELECT BACKFILL

This work shall be in accordance with Section 20 of the Standard Specifications for Water and Sewer Main
Construction in Illinois Granular Select Backfill is being required wherever the pipe is constructed
within existing or proposed dust free driving andor parking surfaces Acceptable materials for bedding
and initial backfill are listed in Section 20 of the Standard Specifications for Water and Sewer Main
Construction in Illinois

All trenches unless directed otherwise by the ENGINEER shall be mechanically compacted

Surplus excavated material not needed for Granular Select Backfill shall be promptly removed from the
site to locations provided by the CONTRACTOR

Payment quantities for Select Backfill shall be for a theoretical trench width of the pipe diameter plus 15
feet on either side of the pipe The select backfill depth is from one 1 foot above the top of the pipe and
to one 1 foot below the existing ground surface Where excavated material is suitable for use as Select
Backfill as determined by the ENGINEER it shall be used and no payment will be made for Granular
Select Backfill

This work will be paid for at the contract unit price bid per CUBIC YARD for FINAL BACKFILL
GRANULAR SELECT BACKFILL

TEMPORARY SURFACE OVER TRENCH

This work shall be in accordance with Section 21201 of the Standard Specifications for Water and Sewer
Main Construction in Illinois The Temporary Surface Over Trench shall be 12 thick and shall become
the surface course in graveled driving or parking areas and shall become the base for the replacement
surface where the pipe is constructed in areas where permanent or temporary drivingparking currently
exist or sidewalks It is being required in all drivingparking areas where sanitary sewers are constructed

The CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for maintaining the temporary surface over trench to the
ENGINEERSsatisfaction for the duration of the project

Acceptable material for Temporary Surface Over Trench is CA10

Payment quantities for Temporary Surface Over Trench shall be for a theoretical trench width of the pipe
diameter plus 15 feet on either side of the pipe The Temporary Surface Over Trench depth shall be 12
inches

This work will be paid for at the contract unit price bid per CUBIC YARD for TEMPORARY SURFACE
OVER TRENCH

TS7



DIVISION TS TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS

BITUMINOUS PAVEMENT REPLACEMENT 2

This work shall be in accordance with Section 21203D of the Standard Specification for Water and Sewer
Main Construction in Illinois and IDOT Standard Specifications for Road and Bridge Construction

Whenever the pipe is laid within a Permanent Bituminous Type Driveway or Parking Lot and as
otherwise indicated on the plans the damaged areas shall be replaced with a bituminous prime coat and
a hot mix asphalt surface two 2 inches in thickness as scheduled on the plans conforming to the Illinois
Department of Transportation Standard Specifications for Road and Bridge Construction
requirements

Preparation shall include coring the trench area to a two 2 inch depth providing squared off and
straight edges by saw cutting if necessary and an application of bituminous prime coat The saw cut for
the pavement replacement edge should be one 1 foot onto undisturbed earth on each side of the trench
The bituminous replacement surface shall be installed to match the existing grade

The payment quantities are based on a theoretical trench width of the pipe diameter plus 25 feet on each
side of the pipe

This work will be paid for at the contract unit price bid per SQUARE YARD for BITUMINOUS
PAVEMENT REPLACEMENT 2

CURB AND GUTTER REPLACEMENT

If any curb and gutter is disturbed CONTRACTOR shall replace according to the following method

This work shall be completed in accordance with Section 606 of the Standard Specifications for Road and
Bridge Construction CONTRACTOR shall replace curb and gutter with same type This work shall
include saw cutting curb and gutter at construction joint and installing dowel bars and expansion joint
material Two 2 4 reinforcement bars shall be installed in the curb The reinforcement bars shall run

continuously for the entire length of the curb The reinforcement bars shall be installed eight 8 inches
from the front and back of the curb and 412 inches from the bottom of the curb

Where curb and gutter is parallel with the sanitary sewer trench the contractor shall use care to protect
this curb and gutter If curb and gutter is damaged or removed the CONTRACTOR shall replace the
curb and gutter at no additional cost to the Owner

Cost for curb and gutter replacement shall be incidental to the various bid items

SIDEWALK REPLACEMENT

If any sidewalk is disturbed CONTRACTOR shall replace according to the following method

This work shall be done in accordance with Section 424 of the Standard Specifications for Road and
Bridge Construction This item shall include all labor materials and equipment necessary to remove and
dispose the existing sidewalk saw cut the sidewalk at the construction joint prepare the aggregate
subgrade for the new sidewalk and install the new sidewalk

TS8



DIVISION TS TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS

The CONTRACTOR will be responsible for the removal and disposal of the existing sidewalk The
subgrade shall be compacted to an elevation in which the new sidewalk will match the existing sidewalk
elevation The subgrade shall be a bed of a minimum of fourinch compacted CA6

The sidewalk thickness shall be five 5 inches thick and the width shall match the existing sidewalk If
sidewalk is damaged or removed the CONTRACTOR shall replace the sidewalk at no additional cost to
the Owner

Cost for sidewalk replacement shall be incidental to the various bid items

SEEDING CLASS 2

This item shall be constructed in accordance with Section 21205 of the Standard Specifications for Water
and Sewer Main Construction in Illinois

This item of work shall include restoring all disturbed grass areas by placing temporarily removed
topsoil tilling all areas to a depth of 3 grading the topsoil to match pre construction conditions and
applying fertilizer Class 2 seed mixture and mulch

Fertilizer

This application rate of fertilizer nutrients for this project shall be as follows

Nitrogen Fertilizer Nutrient 90Acre

Phosphorus Fertilizer Nutrient 90Acre
Potassium Fertilizer Nutrient 90Acre

The fertilizer shall be applied and incorporated into the soil with the tilling of the topsoil

Seeds Class 2

Class 2 Roadside Mixture at the following application rates

Inferno Tall Fescu or Tarheel H Tall Fescue @ 100 lbAcre
Perennial Ryegrass @ 501bAcre

Creeping Red Fescue @ 401bAcre
Red Top @ 101bAcre

Mulch Method 2

Seeded areas shall have mulch applied in accordance with Method 2 in Section 251 of the Standard
Specifications for Road and Bridge Construction in Illinois The straw mulch shall be placed at a rate of 2
tonsacre

Class 2 Seed Bed Preparation

The CONTRACTOR shall separate the topsoil in areas where Seeding Class 2 is scheduled and place that
separated topsoil back on top of the trench after the utility has been installed and backfilled The topsoil
shall be disked or tilled to a depth of three 3 inches to reduce all soil particles to a size not larger than

TS9



DIVISION TS TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS

12 inch in the largest dimension and graded to preconstruction conditions The prepared seed bed shall
be relatively free of weeds clods stones roots sticks rivulets gullies crusting and caking There shall
be no rocks or stones larger than 12 inch in the largest dimension No seeding or mulching shall be done
until the seed bed has been approved by the ENGINEER

The cost for Seeding Class 2 shall be incidental to the various bid items

BYPASS PUMPING

CONTRACTOR shall furnish all labor materials and equipment to provide bypass pumping when
connecting to the existing sanitary sewer manholes at each end of the sewer replacement and when the
existing sanitary sewer is removed to install the new sanitary sewer

CONTRACTOR shall maintain sewer service at all times and disposal of the raw sewage into storm
sewers or over the ground is strictly forbidden

The average flow currently in the existing sanitary sewer is approximated at 350 GPM The estimated
current peak flow is 700 GPM

CONTRACTOR shall reimburse the City of Dixon for all costs incurred should the bypass pumping
operation fail during the CONTRACTORsabsence and the City of Dixon is called upon to restore the
bypass pumping operation

This work shall be paid for at the contract LUMP SUM price for BYPASS PUMPING

TRAFFIC CONTROL

Traffic control and protection shall be in accordance with the applicable sections of the Standard
Specifications for Road and Bridge Construction in Illinois the applicable guidelines contained in the
Illinois Manual on Uniform Traffic Control devices for Street and Highways these Technical
Specifications and any special details and highway standards contained herein and in the plans

Special Attention is called to Article 10709 and 10714 of the Standard Specifications for Road and Bridge
Construction and all applicable IDOT Highway Standards

CONTRACTOR will be permitted to close River Street from Ottawa Avenue to Ravine Avenue during the
sanitary sewer construction and pavement replacement Provisions shall be made to allow local traffic
within the project limits during periods of road closure

CONTRACTOR must notify the City police department fire department and the school district 48 hours
prior to any type of street closing Type III barricades and advance warning signs shall be erected at the
project limits in accordance with the applicable standards and guidelines

On the date that the CONTRACTOR begins work he shall assume responsibility for the normal
maintenance of all existing pavements drives and temporary surfaces within the limits of the
improvement Normal maintenance shall include all repair work deemed necessary by the ENGINEER
but shall not include snow removal operations The responsibility shall end upon completion and
acceptance of all the pay items in this contract

TS10



DIVISION TS TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS

All streets and driveway entrances shall be kept in a condition satisfactory to the ENGINEER to allow
access for all local residents commercial businesses and emergency vehicles

Dust control during construction operations shall be considered a part of the maintenance and shall be
done to the satisfaction of the ENGINEER

At the preconstruction meeting the CONTRACTOR shall furnish the name of the individual within his
company who is responsible for the installation and maintenance of the traffic control for this project If
the actual installation and maintenance are to be accomplished by a subcontractor consent shall be
requested of the ENGINEER at the time of the preconstruction meeting in accordance with Article 10801 of
the Standard Specifications for Road and Bridge Construction This shall not relieve the CONTRACTOR
of the foregoing requirements for a responsible individual within his company Said individual will be
available 24 hours per day

The cost of this work shall be paid for at the contract LUMP SUM price for TRAFFIC CONTROL

DEWATERING

CONTRACTOR shall be aware that dewatering of the trench will be required for the sanitary sewer
construction if the level of the Rock River is high enough If the level of the Rock River is low enough
dewatering may not be required As of52214 the elevation of the Rock River in the project area was
64683

Dewatering shall be considered the use of well points wells or any other means as the contractor deems
necessary to lower the water table below the trench excavation A sump in the trench will not be
considered dewatering If a sump pump is necessary then it shall be considered incidental to the sanitary
sewer construction

Payment of the dewatering will be made at the contract LUMP SUM price bid for DEWATERING

FIELD CHECK DIMENSIONS ETC

The CONTRACTOR will be required to field check all existing dimensions and coordinate with
manufacturers fabricators and the ENGINEER to provide the intended improvements for a completely
functional and operational process Cost of this work to be included in the Contract unit price bid for the
various items with no additional compensation being allowed

SAFETY

CONTRACTOR shall comply with State and Federal Safety regulations as outlined in latest revision of
Federal Construction Safety Standards 29 CFR PART 2026 and with applicable provisions and
regulations of Occupational Safety and Health Administration OSHA Standards of the WilliamsSteiger
Occupational Health and Safety Act of 2070 rev Special attention shall be paid to compliance with
OSHAsSubpart P Excavations Standard

The CONTRACTOR ENGINEER and OWNER shall each be responsible for his own respective agents
and employees

TS11



DIVISION TS TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS

EXPLORATORY EXCAVATION

All cost for exploratory excavation as required to locate existing gas mains watermains water service
lines etc to avoid conflict with the proposed sanitary sewer and sanitary sewer service and to locate and
connect to the individual house sewer lines shall be included in the unit price bid for specific bid items
with no additional compensation being allowed No additional compensation will be allowed for
verification of pipe sizes or pipe size discrepancies on the construction drawings

PILING EXCAVATED MATERIAL

All excavated material shall be piled in a manner that will not endanger the Work and that will avoid
obstructing streets sidewalks and driveways Fire hydrants under pressure valve pit covers valve
boxes curb stop boxes or other utility controls shall be left unobstructed and accessible until the Work is
completed Gutters shall be kept clear or other satisfactory provisions made for street drainage Natural
water courses shall not be obstructed or polluted

Topsoil shall be stockpiled separately whenever pipe construction is performed in vegetated areas
Topsoil shall be returned to the top layer of the trench when backfilling Surplus material and excavated
material unsuitable for backfilling shall be transported and disposed of offsite in disposal areas selected
by the CONTRACTOR Cost for this work shall be included in the various bid items

PROTECTION OF PROPERTY AND SURFACE STRUCTURES

The CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for contacting the property owners where trees hedges fences
tanks trailers sheds or any other obstacles are in the path of construction of the proposed improvement
and moving or removing same in a manner satisfactory to the property owners All surfaces shall as
nearly as possible be restored to their original condition The CONTRACTOR shall perform the cleanup
operation as the job progresses so as to inconvenience the property owners as little as possible

DEVIATIONS OCCASIONED BY STRUCTURES OR UTILITIES

INTERRUPTION TO UTILITIES

The existing underground facilities as shown on the plans are to facilitate the CONTRACTORSwork
and are not intended to represent an exact location or size of the device The CONTRACTOR shall be
responsible for checking with the Municipality and all Utility Companies to carefully locate the existing
water mains sewers buried telephone cables buried electric cables gas mains gas services tiles etc
then proceeding with the construction of the proposed improvements with no additional compensation
being allowed for variations from the plans Any damage to the utilities as a result of this construction
shall be restored to as near original condition as possible at the expense of the CONTRACTOR and no
additional compensation shall be allowed

Any existing sewer or drain tile crossed andor damaged shall be repaired with ductile iron pipe
Pressure Class 250 or 350 The ductile iron pipe shall be installed with a minimum of 1 foot bearing on
undisturbed ground on both banks and shall be connected to the existing pipe in a manner approved by
the ENGINEER The cost of these repairs is to be included in the unit price bid per lineal foot of pipe
with no additional compensation being allowed

TS12



DIVISION TS TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS

DISPOSAL OF SURPLUS EXCAVATED MATERIAL

Surplus excavated material not needed for backfill shall be promptly removed from the site to locations
provided by the CONTRACTOR

The cost of this item shall be included in the various bid items

PROTECTION OF WATERMAIN AND WATER SERVICE LINES

The CONTRACTOR shall take special precaution for protecting watermains and water service lines from
sanitary sewers storm sewers combined sewers house sewer service connections andor drains for
meeting the minimum pipe separation requirements as set forth in section 41201 of the Standard
Specifications

RECORDS AND MEASUREMENTS FOR RECORD DRAWINGS

The CONTRACTOR is required to maintain records in which measurements for watermain and sanitary
sewer facilities locations are recorded He shall submit one copy of these records to the OWNER for the
preparation of Record Drawings As a minimum these records shall include two tie dimensions from

existing monuments for important watermain and sanitary sewer features and elevations for each

The cost of this work shall be included in the unit price bid for the various watermain and sanitary sewer
sizes with no additional compensation being allowed

TS13



RESOLUTION NO

RESOLUTION REGULATING STREETS IN CONNECTION WITH

THE PERFORMANCE OF LYLE LOVETT AND HIS LARGE BAND

AND OTHER FESTIVAL PERFORMERS ON AUGUST 34 2014

WHEREAS the City of Dixon Illinois the City will be the location of a twoday music
festival the Festival which Festival will be held in portions of the Citys downtown on August 3
through August 4 2014 and

WHEREAS in connection with the planning and administration of the Festival Dixon Main
Street has requested that certain streets be closed in the City during the Festival and

WHEREAS in order to promote the Festival and in furtherance of the health safety welfare
and morals of the attendees of the Festival and the citizens of the City the City desires to make certain
street closures as requested by Dixon Main Street

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of
Dixon as follows

SECTION 1 The City hereby finds that all of the recitals contained in the preambles to this
Resolution are true and correct and does incorporate them into this Resolution by this reference

SECTION 2 The City shall close to vehicular traffic other than emergency or authorized City
vehicles the following streets commencing at 800AM on Sunday August 3 2014 until 1200PM
on Tuesday August 5 2014

1 River Street from S Peoria Avenue to S Galena Avenue and
2 Hennepin Avenue from River Street to the north side ofW First Street

SECTION 3 The provisions and sections of this Resolution shall be deemed to be separable
and the invalidity of any portion of this Resolution shall not affect the validity of the remainder

SECTION 4 All resolutions and parts of resolutions in conflict herewith are to the extent of
such conflict hereby repealed

SECTION 5 This Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage and
approval as required by law

Passed by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Dixon on the day of
2014

MAYOR

ATTEST

City Clerk



x

4tf 111

CITY OF DIXON

ORDINANCE NO

ORDINANCE AMENDING THE LIQUOR CODE IN CONNECTION WITH
THE PERFORMANCE OF LYLE LOVETT AND HIS LARGE BAND

AND OTHER FESTIVAL PERFORMERS ON AUGUST 34 2014

ADOPTED BY THE

COUNCIL

OF THE

CITY OF DIXON

THIS DAY OF 2014

Published in pamphlet form by authority of the Council of the City of Dixon this day of
2014



ORDINANCE NO

ORDINANCE AMENDING THE LIQUOR CODE IN CONNECTION WITH
THE PERFORMANCE OF LYLE LOVETT AND HIS LARGE BAND

AND OTHER FESTIVAL PERFORMERS ON AUGUST 34 2014

WHEREAS the City of Dixon Illinois the City will be the location a twoday music
festival the Festival which Festival will be held in portions of the Citys downtown on
August 3rd through August 4 2014 and

WHEREAS in connection with the planning and administration of the Festival Dixon
Main Street has requested the permitting of open alcohol containers in the downtown Festival
area and such other matters as set forth herein and

WHEREAS in order to promote the Festival and in furtherance of the health safety
welfare and morals of the attendees of the Festival and the citizens of the City the City desires to
make the accommodations requested by Dixon Main Street

NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of
Dixon as follows

SECTION 1 The City hereby finds that all of the recitals contained in the preambles to
this Ordinance are true and correct and does incorporate them into this Ordinance by this
reference

SECTION 2 Notwithstanding anything in the City Code to the contrary persons over
the age of twentyone 21 years of age may be permitted to consume alcohol outside of licensed
establishments on the dates and times listed below

Date Time

August 3 400 PM 1100PM

August 4 600PM 1100PM

SECTION 3 The provisions set forth in Section 2 above are subject to the following
qualifications

A This license shall apply only to the following Festival grounds the north
side of River Street to the north side of First Street from the east side of

Peoria Avenue to the west side of Galena Avenue the Festival Garden
on August 3 through August 4 2014

B All alcoholic liquor in the Festival Garden must be purchased from a
licensed premises located in the Festival Garden



C All beer wine and alcoholic liquors sold shall be served only in
aluminum paper or plastic disposable containers No glass containers
shall be permitted in the Festival Garden

D No person other than a licensee or an employee of a licensee shall remain
upon any licensed premises or in the Festival Garden for any period of
time longer than onehalf12 hour following the time when the sale
distribution transfer or gift of alcoholic liquor must terminate No person
including a licensee or an employee of a licensee shall remain upon any
licensed premises or the Festival Garden for any period of time longer
than eighty 80 minutes following the time specified when the sale
distribution transfer or gift of alcoholic liquor must terminate At no time
while the licensee or his employees or agents are upon the premises for
the purpose of operating controlling maintaining or cleaning the premises
or the Festival Garden shall the licensee or employee or agent consume
sell deliver transfer distribute or give away any alcoholic beverage No
licensee employee or agent of a licensee shall permit any other person to
remain on the licensed premises or the Festival Garden beyond the closing
hours specified herein

E Any duly authorized representative of a licensee and any peace officer of
the City County of Lee or State of Illinois are hereby empowered to
remove any person from either the licensed premises or Festival Garden
where such officer or agent has probable cause to believe that such person
may be under the influence of intoxicating beverages

F The foregoing shall be limited by such other rules regulations and
restrictions as the local liquor control commissioner deems necessary to
govern the use of the Festival Garden

G It is the intent of the City Council that the City Liquor Code be liberally
construed for the express purpose of fulfilling the intent of allowing the
sale of alcoholic liquor in the Festival Garden under the restrictive terms
provided herein

H No person under the age of twenty one 21 years shall purchase attempt
to purchase possess or consume any beer or wine or other alcoholic
beverage upon either the Festival Garden the licensed premises or other
premises controlled by the licensee during the license period

I Persons of any age are authorized to be present in the Festival Garden
provided however no persons shall be permitted to be in licensed
establishments unless otherwise permitted by the City Code

J Unless specifically excepted within this section all of the terms and
provisions of the City Code remain in full force and effect

SECTION 4 Notwithstanding anything in Title V Chapter 13 Section 5 1322Bof
the Dixon City Code to the contrary a temporary permit may be issued to a permit holder under
Section 51322 of the City Code to extend the time allowed for playing or broadcasting music in
the outdoor sales area or the Festival Garden until 1159PM on August 3 through August 4
2014 Applications shall be made with the local liquor commissioner not less than three 3 days
prior to the date of the intended outdoor event The applicant shall include in the application the



location and the specific time and date for which the temporary permit is requested No permit
shall issue until the application therefor shall have been approved by the local liquor
commissioner All applications for permits shall remain on file in the office of the clerk to be
listed in a record to be kept for this purpose

SECTION 5 Except as specifically modified hereby all applicable laws ordinances
rules and regulations shall remain in full force and effect

SECTION 6 The provisions and sections of this Ordinance shall be deemed to be
separable and the invalidity of any portion of this Ordinance shall not affect the validity of the
remainder

SECTION 7 All ordinances and parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are to the
extent of such conflict hereby repealed

SECTION 8 The City Clerk is hereby authorized and directed to publish this Ordinance
in pamphlet form

SECTION 9 This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage
approval and publication as required by law

Passed by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Dixon on the day of
2014

MAYOR

ATTEST

City Clerk



RESOLUTION NO

RESOLUTION REQUESTING TEMPORARY CLOSURE OF ILLINOIS ROUTE 26
IN CONNECTION WITH THE PERFORMANCE OF

LYLE LOVETT AND HIS LARGE BAND

AND OTHER FESTIVAL PERFORMERS ON AUGUST 34 2014

WHEREAS the City of Dixon Illinois the City will be the location of a twoday
music festival the Festival which Festival constitutes a public purpose and will be held in
portions of the Citys downtown on August 3 through August 4 2014 and

WHEREAS in connection with the planning and administration of the Festival Dixon
Main Street has requested that certain streets be closed in the City during the Festival and

WHEREAS this event will require the temporary closure of Illinois Route 26 a State
Highway in the City of Dixon from the north side of Abraham Lincoln BridgeakaGalena
Avenue Bridge to River Street southbound right turn lane only and south of River Street
northbound left turn lane only and

WHEREAS Section 4408 of the Illinois Highway Code authorizes the Department of
Transportation to issue permits to local authorities to temporarily close portions of State
Highways for such public purposes

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of
Dixon that permission to close off Illinois Route 26 from the north side of Abraham Lincoln
BridgeakaGalena Avenue Bridge to River Street southbound right turn lane only and south
of River Street northbound left turn lane only as above designated be requested of the
Department of Transportation

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this closure shall occur during the approximate time
period between 8 AM on Sunday August 3 2014 and 1200PM on Tuesday August 5 2014

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this closure is for the public purpose of the Dixon
Petunia Festival

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City ofDixon assumes full responsibility for the
direction protection and regulation of the traffic during the event

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that police officers or authorized flaggers shall at the
expense of the City be positioned at each end of the closed section and at other points such as
intersections as may be necessary to assist directing traffic

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that police officers flaggers and officials shall permit
emergency vehicles in emergency situations to pass through the closed areas as swiftly as is safe
for all concerned



BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that all debris shall be removed by the City of Dixon
Dixon Main Street andor Dixon Petunia Festival Inc prior to reopening said State Highway

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that such signs flags barricades etc shall be used by
the City of Dixon as may be approved by the Illinois Department of Transportation These items
shall be provided by the City of Dixon

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the closure shall be marked according to the Illinois
Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City of Dixon hereby agrees to assume all
liabilities and pay all claims for any damage which shall be occasioned by closing the described
above

BE IT FUTHER RESOLVED that Dixon Main Street shall provide a comprehensive
general liability insurance policy or an additional insured endorsement in the amount of
100000 per person and 500000 aggregate which has the Illinois Department of
Transportation and its officials employees and agents as insureds and which protects them from
all claims arising from the requested road closing

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that a copy of this Resolution shall be forwarded to the
Department of Transportation to serve as a formal request for the permission sought in this
Resolution and to operate as part of the conditions of said permission

ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Dixon this day of
2014

MAYOR

ATTEST

City Clerk


